[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Cabinet (Resources) Panel
9 December 2020
Time

4.00 pm

Venue

Online

Public Meeting?

YES

Type of meeting

Executive

Membership
Chair
Vice-chair

Cllr Louise Miles (Lab)
Cllr Ian Brookfield (Lab)

Labour
Cllr Paula Brookfield
Cllr Steve Evans
Cllr Dr Michael Hardacre
Cllr Jasbir Jaspal
Cllr Linda Leach
Cllr John Reynolds
Cllr Stephen Simkins
Cllr Jacqueline Sweetman
Quorum for this meeting is two Councillors.

Information for the Public
If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Democratic Services team:
Contact
Tel/Email
Address

Dereck Francis, Democratic Services
01902 555835 or dereck.francis@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Democratic Services, Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’s Square,
Wolverhampton WV1 1RL

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from:
Website
Email
Tel

https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk
democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk
01902 550320

Please take note of the protocol for filming, recording, and use of social media in meetings, copies of
which are displayed in the meeting room.
Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports
are not available to the public.

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council £11.33 and
helped reduce the Council’s carbon footprint.

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda
Part 1 – items open to the press and public
Item No.

Title

MEETING BUSINESS ITEMS
1

Apologies for absence

2

Declarations of interest

3

Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 8)
[To approve the minutes of the previous meeting as a correct record.]

4

Matters arising
[To consider any matters arising from the minutes.]

DECISION ITEMS (AMBER - DELEGATED TO THE CABINET (RESOURCES) PANEL)
5

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2020-2021 (Pages 9 - 78)
[To provide a projection of the likely revenue outturn position for the General Fund
and Housing Revenue Accounts when compared with the Council’s approved
revenue budgets for 2020-2021]

6

Kickstart Work Experience Programme (Pages 79 - 90)
[To seek approval to proceed with the Kickstart Work Experience Programme
within the Council]

7

Schedule of Individual Executive Decision Notices (Pages 91 - 94)
[To note the summary of open and exempt decision notices approved by cabinet
member in consultation with employees]

8

Exclusion of press and public
[To pass the following resolution:
That in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business as
it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information on the grounds shown below.]

Part 2 - exempt items, closed to press and public
9

Procurement - Award of Contracts for Works,
Goods and Services (Pages 95 - 112)
[To approve the award of contracts for works, goods
and services]

Information relating to the
financial or business affairs of
any particular person (including
the authority holding that
information) Para (3)

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 3

Cabinet (Resources) Panel
Minutes - 11 November 2020
Attendance
Members of the Cabinet (Resources) Panel
Cllr Ian Brookfield (Vice-Chair)
Cllr Paula Brookfield
Cllr Steve Evans
Cllr Dr Michael Hardacre
Cllr Jasbir Jaspal
Cllr Linda Leach
Cllr John Reynolds
Employees
Tim Johnson
Mark Taylor
Emma Bennett
Ross Cook
Charlotte Johns
Richard Lawrence
Claire Nye
David Pattison
Laura Phillips
Jaswinder Kaur
Dereck Francis

Chief Executive
Deputy Chief Executive
Director of Children and Adult Services
Director of City Environment
Director of Strategy
Director of Regeneration
Director of Finance
Director of Governance
Deputy Director of People and Change
Democratic Services Manager
Democratic Services Officer

Part 1 – items open to the press and public
Item No.

Title

1

Apologies for absence
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Louise Miles,
Stephen Simkins and Jacqueline Sweetman.

2

Declarations of interest
No declarations of interests were made.

3

Minutes of the previous meeting
Resolved:
That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 7 October 2020 be approved
as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

Page 3

Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

4

Matters arising
There were no matters arising from the minutes of the previous meeting.

5

Council Tax Support Scheme
Councillor Ian Brookfield presented the report on a proposal to revise the local
Council Tax Support Scheme, subject to consultation with the West Midlands
Combined Authority and the Fire and Police precepting bodies. Although the scheme
was discretionary, it was something the Council had continued to provide for over the
years. The proposed changes would allow claimants who are living in temporary
accommodation, where the Council had made the accommodation available to the
renter, to have an award of council tax support from the start of their accommodation
regardless of the date of application. It was also proposed to bring forward the date
a council tax support claim is paid, to Universal Credit claimants, to the date of their
Universal claim. These changes would provide benefits to the claimants and reduce
the administrative demands on the Council.
Resolved:
That the proposals to revise the Council Tax Support Scheme for 2021-2022
as outlined in the report, be approved subject to consultation with the West
Midlands Combined Authority and the Fire and Police precepting bodies.

6

Administration of the Black Country Community Discharge Grant
Councillor Linda Leach presented the report on a proposal for the Council to accept
the role of accountable body for the Community Discharge Grant on behalf of the
Black Country Transforming Care Partnership (TCP). The Partnership worked
together to find local and regional alternatives to psychiatric hospitals by supporting
people locally with the right health and wrap around social care support. The grant
could be used for training, supporting services to avoid adults with learning disability
from admission to hospital or to support their timely discharge from hospital. While
the grant was for use across the Black Country region young people and adults in
Wolverhampton would also benefit. Taking the lead in administrating the grant
demonstrated the Council’s continued ambition and commitment to supporting adults
with a learning disability in quality and local services.
Resolved:
1. That City of Wolverhampton Council accepts, holds and distributes the
Community Discharge Grant awarded by the Secretary of State for Health and
Social Care, on behalf of the Black Country region which includes the
administrative areas of Dudley, Sandwell, Walsall and Wolverhampton
Transforming Care Partnership.
2. That the Council accepts the role of accountable body to the Secretary of
State for Health and Social Care for the grant.
3. That the Council enter into such legal agreements as necessary to receive the
grant as lead authority on behalf of the Black Country Transforming Care
Partnership and any further grant payments in 2021-22 and 2022-23.
4. That the Council sign the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the
Secretary of State for Health and Social Care to accept the grant of £657,414
for the Black Country Region.

Page 4

Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

5. That the creation of a supplementary revenue budget in accordance with the
MOU document, fully funded by the grant be approved.
6. That it be noted that City of Wolverhampton Council would not be responsible
for decisions regarding the approval of grant applications and monitoring of
the use of the grant, this would remain the role of the Black Country
Transforming Care Partnership Board, of which we are a key partner.
7

Land at Tremont Street
Councillor John Reynolds presented the report on a proposal for the asset known as
land at Tremont Street to be appropriated from the General Fund to the Housing
Revenue Account for housing development. The appropriation would provide a viable
robust and sustainable solution to ensure that the asset is efficiently utilised and
would provide development of 66 new build apartments for council housing use.
Resolved:
That authority be delegated to the Cabinet Member for City Assets and
Housing in consultation with the Deputy Chief Executive to approve the
appropriation of the Land at Tremont Street from the General Fund to the
Housing Revenue Account for housing development.

8

Leasing of Land at Well Lane - Memorial Statue
Councillor John Reynolds presented the report on the proposed lease of land located
at Well Lane, Wednesfield to the Guru Nanak Sikh Gurdwara, Well Lane for the siting
of a memorial statue and plaque. It would represent a tribute to the 36th Sikh
Regiment and the 21 soldiers who lost their lives in the battle of Saragarhi. The
Gurdwara had agreed to look after the statue and the piece of land around it.
Resolved:
1. That the transfer of land at Well Lane, Wednesfield to the Guru Nanak Sikh
Gurdwara, Well Lane for the purpose of siting a memorial statue on a 99-year
peppercorn lease, subject to terms be approved.
2. That authority be delegated to the Cabinet Member for City Assets and
Housing in consultation with the Deputy Chief Executive to approve the terms
of the lease.

9

Schedule of Individual Executive Decision Notices
Resolved:
That the summary of open and exempt individual executive decisions
approved by the appropriate Cabinet Members following consultation with the
relevant employees be noted.

10

Exclusion of press and public
Resolved:
That in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of
business as they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information relating to
the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the
authority holding that information).

Page 5

Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Part 2 - exempt items, closed to press and public
The Chair reported that as stated previously the meeting was in confidential session
as the information included in the reports could, if released into the public domain,
prejudice the financial position of the Council or its partners. As such all present are
under a legal duty of confidentiality and must not disclose any confidential
information - to do so would not only be a breach of the Council's codes (for
councillors and employees) but also a breach of the legal duty of confidentiality.
11

Procurement - Award of Contracts for Works, Goods and Services
Councillor Ian Brookfield presented for approval the report on the award of contracts
for works, goods and services.
Councillor John Reynolds noted that value of the Window Cleaning contract was
relatively small, and the social value element of the contract was also small. He
reported whilst it could not be guaranteed, it would be appropriate to consider a small
local company that represents the local community, to deliver the window cleaning
service rather than it being awarding to one of the big companies.
Resolved:
1. That authority be delegated to the Cabinet Member for City Assets and
Housing, in consultation with the Deputy Chief Executive, to approve the
award of a contract for Window Cleaning when the evaluation process is
complete.
2. That the exemption to the Contract Procedure Rules approved by the Head of
Procurement and Director of Finance from 1 to 30 September 2020 as set out
in Appendix 1 to the report be noted.

12

Renewal of Black Country Car Cruising Injunction (2021)
The intention to make a key decision on the report ‘Renewal of Black Country Car
Cruising Injunction (2021)’ at the meeting was not publicised in advance as required
by the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to
Information) (England) Regulations 2012. The decision was urgent and could not be
reasonably delayed for the following reasons:
1. A decision to consider whether the proposed renewal of the Black Country Car
Cruising Injunction (and proposed variation) is in the interests of the City of
Wolverhampton and the decision whether to authorise the Cabinet Member for
Governance and Director of Governance to authorise the issue of proceedings
for renewal and variation of the Injunction thereafter, must be made on 11
November 2020. Thus, if a decision is made to pursue an application to renew
(and variation) of the Injunction, the Director and Councillor’s authorisation for
issuing proceedings needs to be given by the end of November 2020.
2. The Black Country Car Cruising Injunction expired at 23:59 on 31 January
2021. Any application to Court must be issued by no later than early
December 2020. Issuing proceedings after this date risks the Court being
unable to list a hearing prior to 31 January 2021 due to the inevitable

Page 6

Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

disruption of the Christmas period and the pressure on the Courts owing to the
backlog of cases resulting from the Covid-19 pandemic. There is a risk,
therefore, that if a decision is made that renewal (and variation) of the
injunction is in the Council’s interest and such application not issued by early
December 2020, the Council and its Black Country Partners (Dudley,
Sandwell and Walsall Councils) would lose the protection of the Black Country
Car Cruising Injunction due to the expiry of said Injunction. At the time of
writing, control of this is in the Council’s gift.
In light of the above consent had been obtained for the key decision to be made at
the meeting under the General Exception provisions.
Councillor Paul Brookfield presented the report on the proposal to make an
application to renew the Black Country Car Cruising Injunction with a variation to
include spectators at a car cruise, for a further three years until 31 January 2024.
Since its introduction in 2015 the injunction had been very successful in tackling the
problems of car cruising, significantly improving road safety, the lives of residents
and improved the prospects of businesses in former hotspot areas as a
consequence. If granted, the renewal and variation to the injunction would mean that
is was consistent with both Birmingham City Council’s and Solihull Metropolitan
Borough Council’s anti-car cruising injunction. It would make enforcement of the
injunctions across the West Midlands region easier for the West Midlands Police to
administer.
Resolved:
1. That it be approved that an application to the High Court inviting the Court to
renew the Black Country Car Cruising Injunction (granted 1 December 2014,
effective from 2 February 2015 and expired 1 February 2018; renewed 9
January 2018 until 1 February 2021) for a further three years until 23:59 hours
on 31 January 2024 is in the interests of the City of Wolverhampton Council
area.
2. That the making of an application to the High Court inviting the Court to vary
the terms of said injunction such that a prohibition be included the effect of
which would be that those actively spectating at a car cruise event are
deemed to be participating in a car cruise and thus in breach of the injunction
be approved. This would bring the Black Country Car Cruising Injunction in
line with the car cruising injunctions covering the Birmingham and Solihull
areas.
3. That authority be delegated to the Cabinet Member for Governance in
consultation with the Director of Governance to execute Individual Executive
Decision Notices to the effect that:
a. The City of Wolverhampton Council (“the Council”) enters an agreement
pursuant to sections 101 and 111 of the Local Government Act 1972 with
the Borough Councils of Dudley, Sandwell and Walsall, for the Council to
lead a project and conduct litigation with the aim of inviting the High Court
to extend the injunction for a further three years from its expiry (i.e. until
23:59 hours on 31 January 2021); and for each of Dudley, Sandwell and

Page 7

Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Walsall to repay the Council one quarter of the Council’s legal costs and
disbursements in making such application to the Court; and
b. When the Director of Governance and the Cabinet Member for
Governance are satisfied as to the quality and cogency of the evidence in
support of the intended application, the Council’s Legal Services
Department be authorised to issue an application to Court inviting the
Court to vary (extend) the injunction for a further three years from its
expiry.
4. That it be noted that an application to Court every three years inviting the
Court to extend the injunction for a further three years or inviting the Court to
grant the injunction in perpetuity is not feasible. Therefore, on a medium
term/long-term basis, as car cruising is a national issue, the Council would
explore the option of leading a project in cooperation with the West Midlands
Combined Authority, West Midlands Police Force to lobby Parliament to
address the nuisance of car cruising through legislation. Separate papers
would be received in due course in this regard.

Page 8

Minutes

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 5

Cabinet (Resources) Panel
9 December 2020
Report title

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2020-2021

Decision designation

AMBER

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

Councillor Louise Miles
Resources

Key decision

Yes

In forward plan

Yes

Wards affected

All Wards

Accountable Director

Tim Johnson, Chief Executive

Originating service

Strategic Finance

Accountable employee

Claire Nye

Director of Finance

Tel

01902 550478

Email

Claire.Nye@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Strategic
Executive Board

24 November 2020

Report to be/has been
considered by

Recommendations for decision:
The Cabinet (Resources) Panel is recommended to:
1. Approve the use of £20,000 from the Regeneration Reserve to fund feasibility and
valuation work at i54 Western Extension as detailed at paragraph 5.4.
2. Approve the use of £942,000 from the Licensing Reserve in line with Licensing
Committee approvals as detailed at paragraph 5.5.
3. Approve the use of £98,000 from the Recovery Reserve to fund a project team for the
Kickstart Work Experience Programme, as detailed at paragraph 5.6 and in also in the
‘Kickstart Work Experience Programme’ report presented to Cabinet (Resources) Panel
at this meeting.

Page 9

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

4. Approve the establishment of supplementary expenditure budgets within the 2020-2021
approved budget as detailed in section 6.0 for grant funded expenditure.
5. Approve 29 virements totalling £9.7 million, for transfers within directorates, as detailed in
Appendix 4.
6. Approve the write-off of eight Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) debts totalling £85,898.47 as
detailed in Appendix 5.
7. Approve the write-off of three Council Tax debts totalling £21,112.96 as detailed in
Appendix 6.

Recommendations for noting:
The Cabinet (Resources) Panel is asked to note:
1. The overall projected outturn for the General Fund for 2020-2021 is forecast to a breakeven outturn position, after a forecast contribution to reserves, excluding the impact of
Covid-19.
2. That at this stage in the financial year it is difficult to forecast redundancy costs. However,
as forecast in recent years it is anticipated that the cost of redundancies can be met from
reserves.
3. That a £9.9 million surplus on the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is projected
compared with a budgeted surplus of £10.8 million as shown at Table 20 and in detail at
Appendix 3. The projected reduction to the surplus of £915,000 will reduce redemption of
debt by £915,000.
4. That 74 sundry debt accounts totalling £39,830.63, as detailed in paragraph 9.3, have
been approved for write-off by the Director of Finance in accordance with the Council’s
Financial Procedure Rules.
5. That 1,215 council tax accounts totalling £441,438.14, as detailed in paragraph 9.5, have
been approved for write-off by the Director of Finance in accordance with the Council’s
Financial Procedure Rules.
6. That 70 Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) debts totalling £257,198.94, as detailed in
paragraph 9.6, have been approved for write-off by the Director of Finance in accordance
with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules.
7. That 16 housing benefit overpayments totalling £4,098.69 as detailed in paragraph 9.10,
have been approved for write-off by the Director of Finance in accordance with the
Council’s Financial Procedure Rules.

Page 10

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

8. That 8 debts relating to Business Improvement District (BID) totalling £3,516.00, as
detailed in paragraph 9.7 of this report, have been approved for write off by the Director
of Finance in accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules.

Page 11

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

1.0

Purpose

1.1

The purpose of this report is to provide Cabinet (Resources) Panel with a projection of
the likely revenue outturn position for the General Fund and Housing Revenue Accounts
when compared with the Council’s approved revenue budgets for 2020-2021, and the
projected financial implications of the Covid-19 pandemic.

1.2

This is the second report of this financial year detailing the likely outturn projection for
2020-2021.

2.0

Background

2.1

On 4 March 2020, the Council approved the net budget requirement for 2020-2021 of
£248.2 million for General Fund services. This report details the likely outturn projections
against this net budget requirement.

2.2

The Council has a good track record over many years of managing its finances well.
However, it is important to note that the budget was prepared prior to the announcement
of the Covid-19 pandemic. At the time of reporting to Council, the full impact of Covid-19
was not anticipated and the impact on both the finances and operating environment
could not have been foreseen.

2.3

Overall, the General Fund projected outturn for 2020-2021 is currently forecast to
achieve a breakeven position against the net budget, after a forecast contribution to
reserves, as analysed in Table 1 (excluding the impact of Covid-19). This is in line with
the 2021-2022 budget strategy as reported to Cabinet on 11 November 2020. However,
there are a number of uncertainties surrounding the ongoing impact of the pandemic,
particularly on public health and wellbeing, social care and income generating services.
The evolving situation will be monitored closely, and updates will be incorporated into
future reports to Councillors. Whilst the Council is reporting a positive outturn position
for 2020-2021, it is recognised that there are significant financial challenges over the
medium term as a result of the pandemic. It is important to note that this financial year is
an exceptional year, the operation of the Council has been disrupted and similarly the
budget. We are robustly managing the financial impact of Covid-19 with the additional
grants that have been allocated. At the same time, we are managing our finances very
tightly, monitoring budget pressures carefully and driving underspends in the base
budget where ever possible to help mitigate the pressures in this year and over the
medium term, whilst ensuring we deliver key council and city priorities.

Page 12

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Table 1 – 2020-2021 General Fund Revenue Budget Projected Outturn
Net Controllable
Budget 20202021

Projected
Outturn
2020-2021

Projected Variation
Over/(Under)

£000
Adult Services
Children's Services and Education
Public Health and Wellbeing
City Environment
City Assets and Housing
Regeneration
Finance
Governance
Strategy
Chief Executive
Communications and External
Relations
Deputy Chief Executive
Corporate Budgets
Transfer to reserve to support
2021-2022 Budget Strategy
Net Budget Requirement
Council Tax (including Adult Social
Care Precept)
Enterprise Zone Business Rates
Top Up Grant
Business Rates (net of WMCA
growth payment and Collection
Fund deficit)
New Homes Bonus
Section 31 Grant - Business Rates
Support
Improved Better Care Fund
Winter Pressures and Social Care
Grants - Adult Social Care
Additional Social Care Grant
Total Resources

£000

£000

%

67,689
54,629
799
28,857
9,558
6,285
14,040
9,682
8,629
184

69,071
51,890
779
29,373
9,473
6,201
13,654
9,458
8,296
184

1,382
(2,739)
(20)
516
(85)
(84)
(386)
(224)
(333)
-

2.04%
(5.01%)
(2.55%)
1.79%
(0.89%)
(1.34%)
(2.75%)
(2.31%)
(3.86%)
0.00%

961

908

(53)

(5.52%)

450
46,460

448
45,324

(2)
(1,136)

(0.44%)
(2.45%)

-

3,164

3,164

-

248,223

248,223

-

-

(108,843)

(108,843)

-

-

(2,700)
(26,578)

(2,700)
(26,578)

-

-

(73,769)

(73,769)

-

-

(1,614)

(1,614)

-

-

(11,703)

(11,703)

-

-

(12,947)

(12,947)

-

-

(3,727)

(3,727)

-

-

(6,342)
(248,223)

(6,342)
(248,223)

-

-

-

-

-

-

Net Budget (Surplus) / Deficit

Page 13

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

2.4

The Draft Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2021-2022 to 2023-2024
presented to Cabinet on 11 November 2020, recognised that the Council anticipated a
net underspend in 2020-2021 and therefore proposed that the underspend would be
transferred into a specific reserve to support the 2021-2022 budget strategy. The
forecast outturn position summarised above therefore shows a breakeven position after
the contribution of forecast underspends into reserve for 2020-2021, excluding the
impact of Covid-19.

2.5

The 2020-2021 Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020-2021 to 2023-2024
presented to Cabinet on 19 February 2020 and Full Council, recognised that during
2020-2021 budget setting process, a number of emerging pressures had been identified
and continue to be kept under review. In order to be prudent and recognise these budget
pressures, a Corporate Contingency budget for growth in 2020-2021 was established.
The Corporate Contingency budget includes £3.0 million for Corporate Landlord.
Significant work has been undertaken by the Projects and Works team to minimise the
use of this contingency but also ensure that all critical compliant maintenance works are
completed where required. Due to the pandemic it has not been possible to undertake
all the scheduled works, and some works have been deferred, it is therefore anticipated
that this contingency will not be required in full. Work is currently ongoing to forecast the
cost of the level of work that will be completed in 2020-2021 and updates will be provided
in a future report to Councillors. In line with the policy set out in the Budget Report, any
efficiencies identified against this budget will either be used to offset the use of capital
receipts or will be transferred into a specific reserve to support the 2021-2022 budget
strategy.

2.6

The impact of the pandemic has significantly distorted the 2020-2021 budget. The
Government has announced a number of one-off grants to help local authorities address
the pressures they are facing in response to Covid-19. Current projections indicate that
these grants will be sufficient to meet the immediate revenue cost pressures and loss of
income, including the delivery of budget reduction targets, however, they will not meet
the ongoing financial implications over the medium term.

2.7

It should be noted that these potential cost pressures are subject to change and do not
include the full cost of recovery work, or the full costs associated with the three tier
system. In addition, there are uncertainties of the impact of the pandemic on public
health and wellbeing, social care and income generating services.

2.8

An update on the General Fund budget risks is provided at section 7.0. Overall the risk
for 2020-2021 is currently assessed as Amber.

2.9

At this stage in the year it is difficult to forecast redundancy costs. However, as forecast
in recent years it is anticipated that the cost of redundancies can be met from reserves.

2.10

In accordance with the Council’s financial procedures rules, all virements in excess of
£50,000, or those that result in a transfer between Employees and Other Controllable
Expenditure headings, require the approval at this meeting. There are 29 General Fund
virements that require approval in this report as detailed in Appendix 4. Any virements

Page 14

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

reflecting a change in management responsibility have been approved under delegation
by the S151 Officer.
2.11

The most significant variances against the budget are reported on a service-by-service
basis in section 3.0 and in detail in Appendix 1. Work is continuing to identify options
and opportunities to offset projected budget pressures and updates will continue to be
provided on a quarterly basis.

2.12

The forecast outturn position for the Housing Revenue Account is a surplus of £9.9
million, compared to a budgeted surplus of £10.8 million. The projected reduction to the
surplus of £915,000 will reduce the redemption of debt by £915,000.

Page 15

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

3.0

General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring: Service Analysis
Adult Services

3.1

A summary of the projected outturn against the Adult Services 2020-2021 revenue
budget is provided in Table 2, whilst a detailed analysis is provided in Appendix 1.
Table 2 – 2020-2021 Revenue Budget Projected Outturn – Adult Services
2020-2021
Controllable
Budget
£000

Adult Services
3.2

67,689

2020-2021
Forecast
Outturn
£000
69,071

Projected Variation
Over/(Under)
£000
1,382

%
2.04%

Overall a net overspend of £1.4 million (2.04%) is projected for the year against Adult
Services. The main factors contributing towards this overspend are as a result of:
1. A forecast overspend within Learning Disabilities Care Purchasing, Mental
Health Assessment & Care Management and Physical Disabilities Care
Purchasing totalling £1.6 million, £304,000 and £173,000 respectively, as a
result of additional demand for care packages. A task and finish group has
been set up to further analyse the causes of this increase in demand and
agree steps to manage and mitigate costs going forward.
These overspends are partially offset by forecast underspends within the
following services:
2. An underspend is forecast within Learning Disabilities Provider Service, Adult
Assessment and Care Management and Quality Assurance and Policies
totalling £230,000, £166,000 and £100,000 respectively, as a result of unfilled
staff vacancies. Work is ongoing to identify any potential future savings.
Children’s Services and Education

3.3

A summary of the projected outturn against the Children’s Services and Education 20202021 revenue budget is provided in Table 3, whilst a detailed analysis is provided in
Appendix 1.

Page 16

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Table 3 – 2020-2021 Revenue Budget Projected Outturn – Children’s Services and
Education
2020-2021
Controllable
Budget
£000
Children's Services and
Education
3.4

54,629

2020-2021
Forecast
Outturn
£000
51,890

Projected Variation
Over/(Under)
£000
(2,739)

%
(5.01%)

Overall a net underspend of £2.7 million (-5.01%) is projected for the year against
Children’s Services and Education. This position is due to strong financial management,
and work is underway to identify ongoing savings. Work is also being undertaken to
model the longer term financial effects of the pandemic on this service. The main factors
contributing towards this are:
1. An underspend is forecast within the Children and Young People in Care
service totalling £1.2 million as a result of reductions against the placements
budgets. This continues to be a result of the robust oversight and
management of demand across the social care system. Work is ongoing to
identify potential permanent budget reduction opportunities.
2. An underspend is forecast within the Strengthening Families service totalling
£751,000 mainly as a result of one-off staffing vacancies partially offset by
agency costs. A review of the support offer from Strengthening Family Hubs
has been undertaken ensuring that the early help offer is responsive to the
needs of our children and families and as a result vacancies are currently
being filled. In addition, work is ongoing to identify in year and ongoing savings
particularly related to Section 17 budgets where tight management has
realised a reduction in spend.
3. An underspend is forecast within the Director of Children’s Service totalling
£242,000 as a result of a one-off saving against the emotional health and
wellbeing contract, which is currently being re-tendered and due to start April
2021.
4. An underspend is forecast with the Safeguarding service totalling £230,000
due to a reduction in costs associated with Deprivation of Liberty safeguards
(DoLs). New legislation has been pushed back to April 2022. It is expected
this will increase demand, however ongoing savings in the interim are being
explored.
5. An underspend is forecast within Specialist Support service totalling £149,000.
Most of the underspend relates to one off staffing vacancies, these have been
identified as in-year efficiencies and ongoing savings are being explored.

Page 17

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Public Health and Wellbeing
3.5

A summary of the projected outturn against the Public Health and Wellbeing 2020-2021
revenue budget is provided in Table 4, whilst a detailed analysis is provided in Appendix
1.
Table 4 – 2020-2021 Revenue Budget Projected Outturn – Public Health and
Wellbeing
2020-2021
Controllable
Budget
£000

Public Health and Wellbeing
3.6

799

2020-2021
Forecast
Outturn
£000
779

Projected Variation
Over/(Under)
£000
(20)

%
(2.55%)

Overall a net underspend of £20,000 (-2.55%) is projected for the year against Public
Health and Wellbeing. The forecast income for WV Active has been significantly reduced
in 2020-2021 as centres have been unable to open and the re-opening will be phased.
This loss of income is currently being monitored against Covid-19 grants.
City Environment

3.7

A summary of the projected outturn against the City Environment 2020-2021 revenue
budget is provided in Table 5, whilst a detailed analysis is provided in Appendix 1.
Table 5 – 2020-2021 Revenue Budget Projected Outturn – City Environment
2020-2021
Controllable
Budget
£000

City Environment
3.8

28,857

2020-2021
Forecast
Outturn
£000
29,373

Projected Variation
Over/(Under)
£000
516

%
1.79%

Overall a net overspend of £516,000 (1.79%) is projected for the year against City
Environment. The main factors contributing towards this overspend are as a result of:
1. An overspend is forecast within Customer Services totalling £126,000 as a
result of loss of income, taking on additional workloads and the delay in the
delivery of a budget reduction target.
2. An overspend is forecast within Street Lighting totalling £227,000 as a result of
delayed efficiencies from the implementation of LED’s.

Page 18

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

3. An overspend is forecast within Waste and Recycling service totalling
£306,000 as a result of as a result of operational costs and associated costs of
extending the opening hours of household waste recycling centres from 5 to 7
days a week.
4. An overspend is forecast within Waste Commercial Services totalling £441,000
primarily as a result of additional disposal costs due to price increases on
these contracts.
These overspends are partially offset by forecast underspends mainly within
the following services:
5. An underspend is forecast within Operation & Maintenance of Existing Network
totalling £127,000 mainly as a result of vacancies held pending a restructure.
6. An underspend is forecast within Public Protection and Environmental Services
totalling £145,000 and £170,000 respectively, as a result of unfilled staff
vacancies.
7. An underspend is forecast within Fleet Services totalling £318,000 as a result
of underspends and efficiencies on staffing, tyres and parts, and increased
income.
City Assets and Housing
3.9

A summary of the projected outturn against the City Assets and Housing 2020-2021
revenue budget is provided in Table 6, whilst a detailed analysis is provided in Appendix
1.
Table 6 – 2020-2021 Revenue Budget Projected Outturn – City Assets and Housing
2020-2021
Controllable
Budget
£000

City Assets and Housing
3.10

2020-2021
Forecast
Outturn
£000

9,558

9,473

Projected Variation
Over/(Under)
£000
(85)

%
(0.89%)

Overall a net underspend of £85,000 (-0.89%) is projected for the year against City
Assets and Housing. The main factors contributing towards this underspend are:
1. An underspend is forecast within the Cleaning service totalling £382,000 as a
result of unfilled staffing vacancies and the efficient use of staffing resources
as a result of buildings remaining closed.

Page 19

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

2. An underspend is forecast within Corporate Asset Management totalling
£568,000 reflects the decrease in utility expenditure as a result of the reduced
use of operational buildings.
These underspends are partially offset by forecast overspends within the
following service:
3. An under recovery of income is forecast within the Estates and Valuations
service totalling £253,000 as a result of reduced income relating to ground
leases and vacant commercial rental units.
4. An overspend is forecast within the Housing service totalling £670,000 due to
increased demand for homelessness provision generally. This is mitigated by
reduced costs in Private Sector Housing due to staff vacancies and additional
forecast income from Licencing and Civil Penalties.
Regeneration
3.11

A summary of the projected outturn against the Regeneration 2020-2021 revenue budget
is provided in Table 7, whilst a detailed analysis is provided in Appendix 1.
Table 7 – 2020-2021 Revenue Budget Projected Outturn – Regeneration
2020-2021
Controllable
Budget
£000

Regeneration
3.12

6,285

2020-2021
Forecast
Outturn
£000
6,201

Projected Variation
Over/(Under)
£000
(84)

%
(1.34%)

Overall a net underspend of £84,000 (-1.34%) is projected for the year against
Regeneration. The main factors contributing towards this underspend are:
1. An underspend is forecast within Visitor Economy totalling £315,000 as a
result of one-off staffing vacancies held pending a restructure with the service.
This forecast underspend is partially offset by forecast overspends within the
following service:
2. An overspend is forecast within City Planning service totalling £114,000 as a
result of income targets not being met.
3. An overspend is forecast for the Enterprise service totalling £121,000 as a
result of a Wolves at Work funding pressure.

Page 20

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Finance
3.13

A summary of the projected outturn against the Finance 2020-2021 revenue budget is
provided in Table 8, whilst a detailed analysis is provided in Appendix 1.
Table 8 – 2020-2021 Revenue Budget Projected Outturn – Finance
2020-2021
Controllable
Budget
£000

Finance
3.14

2020-2021
Forecast
Outturn
£000

14,040

13,654

Projected Variation
Over/(Under)
£000
(386)

%
(2.75%)

Overall a net underspend of £386,000 (-2.75%) is projected for the year against Finance.
The main factors contributing towards this underspend are:
1. An underspend is forecast within Audit Services totalling £285,000 as a result
of unfilled staff vacancies held across the service.
2. An underspend is forecast for the Central Corporate Budgets totalling
£461,000 due to significant reductions in enhanced pension costs and bank
charges, combined with other lesser underspends against a range of corporate
budgets.
3. An underspend is forecast for Procurement Services totalling £238,000. As
part of the 2020-2021 budget setting process, emerging pressures within
Procurement Services were flagged and a budget was earmarked in the
Corporate Contingency for Budget Growth. Taking the budget allocation into
account, it is forecast that the service will not fully utilise this budget in 20202021 due to resource reallocation during the Covid-19 pandemic.
This forecast underspends are partially offset by a forecast overspend within
the following service:
4. An overspend is forecast against Housing Benefits and Payment Subsidy
totalling £713,000 as a result of increased demand for homelessness
provision.
Governance

3.15

A summary of the projected outturn against the Governance 2020-2021 revenue budget
is provided in Table 9, whilst a detailed analysis is provided in Appendix 1.

Page 21

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Table 9 – 2020-2021 Revenue Budget Projected Outturn – Governance
2020-2021
Controllable
Budget
£000
Governance
3.16

9,682

2020-2021
Forecast
Outturn
£000
9,458

Projected Variation
Over/(Under)
£000

%

(224)

(2.31%)

Overall a net underspend of £224,000 (-2.31%) is projected for the year against
Governance mainly due to an underspend within Legal Services totalling £115,000 as a
result of anticipated additional external income generation.
Strategy

3.17

A summary of the projected outturn against the Strategy 2020-2021 revenue budget is
provided in Table 10, whilst a detailed analysis is provided in Appendix 1.
Table 10 – 2020-2021 Revenue Budget Projected Outturn – Strategy
2020-2021
Controllable
Budget
£000

Strategy
3.18

8,629

2020-2021
Forecast
Outturn
£000
8,296

Projected Variation
Over/(Under)
£000

%

(333)

(3.86%)

Overall a net underspend of £333,000 (-3.86%) is projected for the year within Strategy
mainly as a result of an underspend within ICTS totalling £238,000 due to unfilled staff
vacancies in year and continuing works to identify and deliver efficiencies in advance of
the targets reflected in the approved Medium Term Financial Strategy for ICT.
Chief Executive

3.19

A summary of the projected outturn against the Chief Executive 2020-2021 revenue
budget is provided in Table 11, whilst a detailed analysis is provided in Appendix 1.
Table 11 – 2020-2021 Revenue Budget Projected Outturn – Chief Executive
2020-2021
Controllable
Budget
£000

Total Chief Executive

184

Page 22

2020-2021
Forecast
Outturn
£000
184

Projected Variation
Over/(Under)
£000

%
-

0.00%

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

3.20

Overall a breakeven position is projected for the year against the Chief Executive budget.
Communications and External Relations

3.21

A summary of the projected outturn against the Communications and External Relations
2020-2021 revenue budget is provided in Table 12, and in Appendix 1.
Table 12 – 2020-2021 Revenue Budget Projected Outturn – Communications and
External Relations
2020-2021
Controllable
Budget
£000

Communications and External
Relations
3.22

2020-2021
Forecast
Outturn
£000

961

908

Projected Variation
Over/(Under)
£000

%

(53)

(5.52%)

Overall a net underspend of £53,000 (-5.52%) is projected for the year against
Communications and External Relations.
Deputy Chief Executive

3.23

A summary of the projected outturn against the Deputy Chief Executive 2020-2021
revenue budget is provided in Table 13, whilst a detailed analysis is provided in Appendix
1.
Table 13 – 2020-2021 Revenue Budget Projected Outturn – Deputy Chief Executive
2020-2021
Controllable
Budget
£000

Deputy Chief Executive
3.24

2020-2021
Forecast
Outturn
£000

450

448

Projected Variation
Over/(Under)
£000

%
(2)

(0.44%)

Overall a net underspend of £2,000 (-0.44%) is projected for the year against Deputy
Chief Executive.
Corporate Budgets

3.25

A summary of the projected outturn against the Corporate Budgets 2020-2021 revenue
budget is provided in Table 14, whilst a detailed analysis is provided in Appendix 1.

Page 23

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Table 14 – 2020-2021 Revenue Budget Projected Outturn – Corporate Budgets
2020-2021
Controllable
Budget
£000
Corporate Budgets
3.26

46,460

2020-2021
Forecast
Outturn
£000
48,488

Projected Variation
Over/(Under)
£000
2,028

%
4.37%

Overall a net overspend of £2.0 million (4.37%) is projected for the year against
Corporate Budgets, after the transfer of £3.2 million to reserves to support the 2021-2022
budget strategy. The main factors contributing towards this are:
1. An underspend in the region of £1.8 million is forecast against the Treasury
Management budget due to a reduced borrowing need in-year arising as a
result of rephasing of the capital programme and lower interest rates forecast
on borrowing due to the impact on the economy of Covid-19. This is offset by a
reduction in treasury income receivable.
2. An underspend is forecast against Corporate Budgets and Adjustments
totalling £1.5 million as a result of anticipated budget efficiencies against
corporate contingencies, including the provision for business rates expenditure
increases for Council buildings.
3. As detailed in points 1-2 above, it is anticipated that there will be underspends
against the Treasury Management budget, Corporate contingencies and other
corporate budgets in 2020-2021. In order to be prudent, the underspend will
enable the Council to reduce the level of capital receipt flexibility used for
revenue transformational activity in 2020-2021 by £3.3 million.
4. In addition to this, it is also anticipated that there will be an underspend against
the Central Provision for Auto-enrolment and Pay Award costs totalling £1.1
million in 2020-2021. This corporate budget efficiency was identified in the
most recent Draft Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2021-2022 to
2023-2024 update which was presented to Cabinet on 11 November 2020. In
that report it was proposed that this net underspend be transferred into a
specific reserve to support the 2021-2022 budget strategy.
5. As a result of the forecast corporate budget efficiencies and one-off forecast
underspends across other Directorates, it is proposed based on current
forecasts that £3.2 million be transferred into a specific reserve to support the
2021-2022 budget strategy.

Page 24

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

3.27

The 2020-2021 Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020-2021 to 2023-2024
presented to Cabinet on 19 February 2020 and Full Council, recognised that during
2020-2021 budget setting process, a number of emerging pressures had been identified
and continue to be kept under review. In order to be prudent and recognise these budget
pressures, a Corporate Contingency budget for growth in 2020-2021 was established.
This projected outturn position currently assumes this continency budget is required in
full in 2020-2021.

3.28

The Corporate Contingency budget for growth includes £3.0 million for Corporate
Landlord. Significant work has been undertaken by the Projects and Works team to
minimise the use of this contingency but also ensure that all critical compliant
maintenance works are completed where required. Due to the pandemic it has not been
possible to undertake all the scheduled works, and some works have been deferred, it is
therefore anticipated that this contingency will not be required in full. Work is currently
ongoing to forecast the cost of the level of work that will be completed in 2020-2021 and
updates will be provided in a future report to Councillors. In line with the policy set out in
the Budget Report, any efficiencies identified against this budget will either be used to
offset the use of capital receipts or will be transferred into a specific reserve to support
the 2021-2022 budget strategy.

3.29

It is important to note that this financial year is exceptional, the operation of the council
has been disrupted and similarly the budget. We are robustly managing the financial
impact of Covid with the additional grants that have been allocated. At the same time,
we are managing our finances very tightly, monitoring budget pressures carefully and
driving underspends in the base budget where ever possible to help mitigate the
pressures in this year and over the medium term, whilst ensuring we deliver key council
and city priorities.

4.0

Covid-19 Pandemic

4.1

Since the 2020-2021 budget was set in March 2020, the World Health Organisation
categorised Covid-19 as a global pandemic. At the time of reporting to Council on 4
March 2020, the full impact of Covid-19 was not anticipated and the impact on both the
finances and operating environment could not have been foreseen. The financial
implications of the pandemic have significantly distorted the 2020-2021 budget.

4.2

The Government has announced grant funding to help local authorities address the
pressures they are facing in response to Covid-19. Wolverhampton’s total confirmed
funding allocation from the Covid-19 Emergency Grant is £25.5 million. The Government
have also announced a co-payment mechanism for irrecoverable sales, fees and
charges income. This funding is conditional upon grant claims and payable in three
tranches. The first claim submitted in September claiming costs of £2.2 million, has been
approved. Based on current forecasts, the total additional grant that could be claimed
under this grant scheme is estimated to be in the region of £3.4 million. It is important to
note that this is not confirmed income and is subject to change. In addition, a number of
one-off grants have been awarded to support specific activity such as supporting rough
sleepers, additional enforcement, support to children and families through the Winter

Page 25

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Grants Scheme, provision of emergency food and essential supplies to vulnerable
groups and funding to support test and trace and for contained outbreak management.
A full list of grants awarded to the Council to-date during the Covid-19 pandemic are
detailed below:
Table 15 – Covid-19 One-off Grants
Grant

Allocation
£000

General Grants
Covid 19 Emergency Grant
Sales, Fees and Charges (first claim)
Grants with conditions / criteria
Enforcement Surge Funding
Rough Sleepers (2 tranches announced to date)
Reopening of the High Street
Test and Trace
Emergency Food and Essential Supplies
Wellbeing for Education Return Grant
Active Travel Scheme (revenue and capital)
Home to School Transport
Contained Outbreak Management Fund
Grants passported to third parties
Business Grant
Hardship Fund
Infection and Prevention
Business Improvement Districts
Test and Trace Support Payments
Estimated Allocation – amounts not confirmed.
Sales, Fees and Charges (potential further claims)

25,547
2,207

174
209
234
1,920
393
37
347
273
2,126

63,850
3,272
6,228
34
274

3,392

4.3

Under the Council’s emergency decision-making powers, a range of short term initiatives
have been implemented including: the distribution of food parcels to the city’s most
vulnerable residents, temporary accommodation for rough sleepers, additional financial
support for adult social care providers and the procurement of additional personal
protective equipment for key staff and partners.

4.4

All of these short-term new initiatives required additional investment and have been
funded to-date by the funding received from Central Government.

4.5

In addition to the short-term initiatives, a number of services were suspended in
response to Government requirements. Income streams have been adversely affected

Page 26

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

from the loss of fees and charges for services, such as car parking, leisure and cultural
services.
4.6

At the time of setting the 2020-2021 budget, new service budget reduction and income
generation targets totalling in excess of £10 million were approved. A number of these
planned targets are now at risk because resources that would originally have been
focussed on transformation programmes have been redirected to enable the Council to
respond to the crisis.

4.7

The Council has played a proactive, leading role in responding to Covid-19. Some of the
new initiatives implemented to support the City’s residents may continue to require
financial support. As the situation evolves and restrictions continue to ease, some of the
new initiatives will cease entirely, ease or will transition into different services which will
require financial support.

4.8

Our current projections demonstrate that the estimated grant funding for Wolverhampton
will be sufficient to meet the immediate revenue cost pressures and loss of income,
including the delivery of budget reduction targets. However, it is important to note, that
the financial implications detailed below are subject to change and do not include the full
cost of recovery work or any provision for changes of the three tier system.

4.9

The table below shows the current projections of the cost implications which are being
funded from the general Covid-19 Emergency Grant and the Sales, Fees and Charges
grant. As detailed in Table 15, the Council has also been awarded a number of other
grants to support specific activity such as the provision of emergency food and essential
supplies to vulnerable people, additional enforcement, and test and trace provision, this
expenditure is not included the in table below. Expenditure against these grants are in
line with allocations and criteria set for these grants.

Page 27

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Table 16 - Projected Financial Implications of Covid-19 in 2020-2021
Category

2020-2021
£000

Expenditure including recovery costs

13,621

Loss of Income

10,556

Budget Reduction and Income Generation targets at risk

1,575

Provision for expenditure on activity to support current and future
restrictions

5,394

Total potential impact

31,146

Confirmed Grant Funding
Covid-19 Emergency Grant (general)
Sales, Fees and Charges income (first claim)

Total Confirmed Government Grant Funding

25,547
2,207

27,754

Potential Shortfall before further Sales, Fees and Charges Grant

3,392

Sales, Fees and Charges – estimate of future claims (August to
March)*

3,392

Potential Further Government Grant*

3,392

*please note this funding is not confirmed and is subject to the submission and approval
of grant claims.
4.10

In addition to the costs above, Covid-19 has had an impact on development of capital
projects. Given the unprecedented circumstances, there has understandably been some
delay on capital projects due to the pandemic. The Council continues to assess the
potential implications of Covid-19 on the wider capital programme in terms of delivery
timescales and increase in costs. Any additional costs on the capital programme will
result in an increase in the Treasury Management revenue budget. The joint meeting of
Cabinet and Cabinet (Resources) Panel on 23 June 2020, received a report on the
Covid-19 impact on the Capital Programme. In order be prudent, additional capital
budget has been built into the Capital Programme to cover potential risks associated with
the Covid-19 pandemic. The potential annual revenue impact could be up to £430,000
per year, the impact of this will not be seen until after 2020-2021.

Page 28

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

4.11

In addition, there are longer term implications for the Council’s operating model, as the
scale of the change post-Covid-19 will place new expectations and demands on service
delivery in 2020-2021 and future years. At this stage it has not been possible to fully
quantify the potential impact of Covid-19 over the medium term. It is anticipated that
pressures will emerge in many areas particularly in relation to adult social care, public
health and wellbeing and income generating services.

4.12

The HRA has also seen a reduction in income due to the pandemic. The current
projections are currently show a reduction in income of £1.1 million from rent and service
charges. In the first national lockdown, work could not be undertaken to refurbish and
prepare void properties in order for them to be re-let. Whilst these works are now being
carried out, to ensure safe working practices it is taking longer to turn around void
properties for re-let resulting in lost income.

5.0

Reserves and Balances

5.1

Following a review of the reserves position during 2019-2020, the Council’s General
Fund balance was increased by £3.0 million to a total value of £13.0 million. The level of
reserve is approximately 5% of the 2020-2021 net budget which is in line with
recommended best practice.

5.2

In addition to the General Fund balance, the Council also holds a number of earmarked
reserves. Earmarked reserves balances that have been set aside by the Council to fund
future estimated liabilities and planned expenditure at the end of 2019-2020 was £35.4
million. The Council is also required to hold a number of earmarked reserves due to
either specific criteria associated with funding, legal requirements or accounting practice.
The total values of these types of earmarked reserves at the end of 2019-2020 was
£29.2 million.
Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves

5.3

Approval is sought for a number of transfers to/from earmarked reserves, as set out in
the following paragraphs.

5.4

Regeneration Reserve
Approval is sought from this meeting for the use of £20,000 from the Regeneration
Reserve to fund feasibility and valuation work at i54 Western Extension.

5.5

Licensing Reserve
Approval is sought from this meeting for the use of £942,000 from the Licensing
Reserves in line with Licencing Committee approval.

5.6

Recovery Reserve
Approval is sought from this meeting for the use of £98,000 from the Recovery Reserve
to fund the cost of a project team over an 18 month period to support the Kickstart Work

Page 29

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Experience Programme. Further details of this project are presented to Cabinet
(Resources) Panel at this meeting in the ‘Kickstart Work Experience Programme’ report.
6.0

Changes to Grant Funded Expenditure

6.1

It is not always possible to reflect all grant funded expenditure in the budget approved by
Full Council prior to the start of the financial year. This is due to late notification from
grant awarding bodies of grant amounts, use of historic grants and proactive grant
applications during the year.

6.2

Approval is sought from Cabinet (Resources) Panel to establish supplementary budgets
within the 2020-2021 approved budget as set out in Table 17, and in accordance with the
grant terms and conditions. This will have no effect on the Council’s net revenue budget
as the expenditure is fully funded from the grant.
Table 17 – Grant Approval sought from this Panel

Grant Name

Description of the Activities this
grant will fund

Awarding Body

Dedicated Home
to School and
College Transport
Grant

This grant funds additional
capacity on Home to School/
College Transport required as a
consequence of Covid-19, mainly
mini-buses and taxis.

Department for
Education

European Social
Fund (ESF)
Digital
Intervention
funding

Devices and connectivity
supporting Black Country Digital
Inclusion for families and
communities

Department for Work
and Pensions

Expenditure
2020-2021
£000

137

11

7.0

General Fund Budget Monitoring – Risk Management

7.1

The overall level of risk associated with the budget 2020-2021 is assessed as Amber. As
detailed in paragraph 2.3 it is forecast that the Council will breakeven in 2020-2021, after
a forecast contribution to reserves. It is important to note however, that the Council has
budget reductions to deliver and income to achieve over the medium term,
notwithstanding the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. An additional risk has been
incorporated into the Risk Register for Covid-19. The main areas of risk are summarised
in the table at Appendix 2.

8.0

Revenue Budget Monitoring – Schools’ Budgets

8.1

Maintained schools are required to submit budget plans detailing their expected income
and planned spending levels at two points in the year; 31 May and 31 October. Table 18
shows the schools’ actual end of year balances for 2019-2020 and the latest projected
balances in those submitted budget plans for 2020-2021.

Page 30

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Table 18 – Projected Movement on Schools’ Balances 2020-2021

Sector

(1,547)
4,371
191
136
1,145
1,100
915

Forecast Use of
Balances in
2020-2021
Surplus / (Deficit)
£000
770
(193)
21
96
(501)
(350)
(558)

6,311

(715)

Balances as at 31
March 2020
Surplus / (Deficit)
£000

Secondary
Primary
Junior
Infant
Nursery
Special
Pupil Referral Units
Total

Forecast Balances
as at 31 March 2021
Surplus / (Deficit)
£000
(777)
4,178
212
232
644
750
357
5,596

Schools with Surplus Balances
8.2

At the end of 2019-2020 maintained schools had balances of £6.3 million. 20 schools
were identified as having balances above recognised thresholds detailed in the local
scheme (5% for secondary schools and 8% for primary, special and nursery schools).

8.3

All schools that have balances above these criteria are being requested to provide plans
for their intended use. Local Authority Officers will scrutinise these plans and will be
having meetings with the headteachers of these schools. A decision will then be made
whether any of these schools will be moved forward into the arbitration process as
detailed below and an update on this will be included in the 2020-2021 Revenue Budget
Outturn report to Councillors.

8.4

The Scheme for Financing Schools establishes an arbitration process to review the
Authority’s decision and determine if, and to what level, any excess balances should be
recovered.
Schools in a deficit balance position

8.5

As part of its overview of schools in deficit, a Schools at Financial Risk Board (SFR)
chaired by the Head of School Business & Support Services, reviews the financial
information from schools in deficit to evaluate the financial position of the schools. The
chair of Schools Forum is also a member of the board. The current position of schools
that had anticipated a deficit position at the end of 2020-2021 is as follows:

Page 31

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Table 19 – Schools with anticipated deficits in 2020-2021

Name

Actual
Balance at
end of 20192020
Surplus /
(Deficit)
£000

Anticipated
Balance at end
of 2020-2021
Surplus /
(Deficit)
£000

St Matthias

(687)

25

The King’s
Church of
England

(1,068)

(818)

29

(9)

-

(293)

Phoenix
Nursery

(8)

(44)

Windsor
Nursery

42

(3)

Braybrook
Centre

69

(17)

St Paul’s
CofE (A)
Primary
Penn Hall
Special
School

Status

A licensed deficit and recovery plan have
been agreed with the school and progress
is as planned.
Licensed deficit application has been
received and approved. The school are
currently in breach of their licensed deficit
and enhanced work is continuing with the
school to identify further cost reductions.
The authority is working with the school
and monitoring their financial situation.
Licensed deficit application may be
necessary.
Penn Hall’s financial position is being
monitored. A licensed deficit application is
required to support this deficit.
Phoenix Nursery has fluctuating pupil
numbers. A licensed deficit will be required
if the deficit outturn is as forecast.
A licensed deficit will be required if the
deficit outturn is as forecast.
A licensed deficit will be required if the
deficit outturn is as forecast.

Deficits Following Sponsored Academy Conversion
8.6

The schools surplus or deficit balance on conversion to academy status usually transfers
at the same time. However, where the conversion is directed by the Department for
Education (DfE) through a sponsorship arrangement any deficit remaining must be met
by the local authority’s General Fund. On 17 December 2019, Cabinet approved the use
of £300,000 from the Budget Contingency Reserve to meet the conversion costs of St
Patrick’s RC Primary. This school converted on 1 March 2020 and the deficit following
final determination was £157,189, which is substantially less than the agreed from
reserve.

8.7

The Local Government Association (LGA) has stated that this policy is unfair on local
authorities. However, DfE have said that academies are a vital part of the plan for

Page 32

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

transforming education and that the accumulated deficits for sponsored academies must
be met by local authorities.
9.0

Debt Write Offs

9.1

Debts are only written off as a last resort, when all feasible recovery action has been
exhausted. If the situation surrounding an individual case changes in the future, steps
would be taken to pursue the debt, despite the debt having been written off.
Sundry Debtors

9.2

Income is due to the Council for a wide range of services provided to individuals and
businesses. To reflect the fact that, despite the Council’s best efforts, not all of this
income will actually be collected, the Council makes provision for bad and doubtful debts,
which it charges directly to the General Fund.

9.3

Overall, 74 debt write offs totalling £39,830.63 have been incurred. All have been
approved for write off by the Director of Finance in accordance with the Council’s
Financial Procedures Rules.
The Collection Fund

9.4

The City of Wolverhampton Council acts as billing and collecting authority for council tax
and non-domestic rates income. The Council administers a separate Collection Fund
account for this purpose. The Collection Fund accounts for the receipt of council tax and
business rates (non-domestic rates) income and payments to precepting authorities such
as the Fire Authority and the Police. Within this account, provisions are made for bad and
doubtful debts and any write offs are charged to the council tax or business rates
provision as appropriate.

9.5

Council Tax – Overall, 1,218 debt write offs totalling £462,551.10 have been incurred. All
but three valued at £21,112.96 in total, which require approval of Cabinet (Resources)
Panel (see Appendix 6), have been approved for write off by the Director of Finance in
accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules.

9.6

Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) – Overall, 78 debt write offs totalling £343,097.41 have
been incurred. All but eight valued at £85,898.47 in total, which require approval of
Cabinet (Resources) Panel (see Appendix 5), have been approved for write off by the
Director of Finance in accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules.

9.7

In addition to this, the Director of Finance has approved the write off of 8 debts relating to
the Business Improvement District (BID) totalling £3,516, in accordance with the
Council’s Financial Procedure Rules.
Housing Benefits

9.8

Housing benefit overpayments occur when rent rebate or rent allowance awards exceed a
recalculated entitlement. Whilst the Council aims to limit the incidence of overpayments,

Page 33

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

they may occur for a number of reasons including as a result of fraud or error. In general,
overpaid benefit is written off in line with Government guidance where recovery would
cause hardship, where the debtor has died or cannot be traced.
9.9

The Council receives Government subsidy in respect of overpaid housing benefit at rates
of between 40% and 100% according to the circumstances in which the overpayment
arose. The unsubsidised element of any overpayment is charged to the General Fund.

9.10

Overall, 16 overpayments totalling £4,098.69 have been incurred. All have been
approved for write off by the Director of Finance in accordance with the Council’s
Financial Procedure Rules.

10.0

Housing Revenue Budget Monitoring

10.1

Table 20 shows the latest forecast revenue outturn against budget for the Housing
Revenue Account (HRA). The forecast outturn position for the year is a surplus of £9.9
million, compared to a budgeted surplus of £10.8 million. The projected reduction to the
surplus of £915,000 will reduce redemption of debt by £915,000.
Table 20 – Housing Revenue Account Projected Outturn 2020-2021
Budget

Projected
Outturn

Projected
Variation

£000

£000

£000

Total income
Total expenditure
Net cost of HRA services
Interest payments etc.
Contribution to capital financing
(Surplus)/deficit before transfers to/from
reserves and provision for redemption of
debt

Allocation of (surplus)/deficit

(96,518)

(95,440)

1,078

67,056

67,575

519

(29,462)

(27,865)

1,597

10,917

10,235

(682)

7,707

7,707

-

(10,838)

(9,923)

915

10,838

9,923

(915)

-

-

-

Provision for redemption of debt
Balance for the year
10.2

Income from rents and service charges is forecast to be £1.1 million lower than
budgeted, due to loss of income resulting from the impact of COVID 19. The budget
assumed a lower loss of income due to empty properties than has been achieved to

Page 34

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

date. This started with being unable to re-let homes during the initial lockdown period and
then the need for COVID safe working practices increasing turnaround times.
10.3

Expenditure on rents, rates and taxes is £296,000 higher than the budget, this includes
some back dated council tax on empty properties, and properties being empty for longer
as referred to in 10.2 above. Expenditure on depreciation is £220,000 above the budget.
This is due to the number of properties due to be depreciated being higher than
anticipated due to the forecast for the number of right-to-buy sales being revised.

10.4

Expenditure on loan interest payable is forecast to be £746,000 lower than budgeted for.
This is because of slippage on the HRA capital programme due to COVID 19.

11.0

Evaluation of alternative options

11.1

The write-offs, virements and use of reserve requests requiring the approval of Cabinet
(Resources) Panel are all considered to be prudent in the opinion of the Director of
Finance and the Cabinet Member for Resources.

12.0

Reason for decisions

12.1

In accordance with the Council’s financial procedures rules, all virements in excess of
£50,000, or those that result in a transfer between Employees and Other Controllable
Expenditure headings, require the approval of Cabinet (Resources) Panel. Contribution
to and from reserves also requires the approval from Cabinet (Resources) Panel. The
write-offs, virements and use of reserve requests detailed in this report which seek the
approval of Cabinet (Resources) Panel are all considered to be prudent in the opinion of
the Director of Finance and the Cabinet Member for Resources.

13.0

Financial Implications

13.1

The financial implications are discussed in the body of the report.
[MH/01122020/J]

14.0

Legal Implications

14.1

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires local authorities to make
arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs. It is a legal
requirement under s25 of the Local Government Act 2003 to set a balanced budget and
monitor the financial position throughout the year.
[TS/01122020/S]

15.0

Equality Implications

15.1

This report provides details of the projected outturn for 2020-2021. The necessary
equalities analysis formed part of the 2020-2021 budget setting process.

Page 35

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

16.0

Climate Change and Environmental Implications

16.1

A range of services focused upon the Council’s climate change and environmental
policies is supported through revenue budgets reviewed in this report.

17.0

Human resources implications

17.1

Revenue Budget Monitoring reports on forecast outturn position of all Council services.
There are no relevant human resources implications arising from this report.

18.0

Corporate landlord implications

18.1

There are no relevant corporate landlord implications arising from this report.

19.0

Health and Wellbeing Implications

19.1

Revenue Budget Monitoring reports on forecast outturn position of all Council services
including services which seek to improve the health and wellbeing of all population of
City of Wolverhampton.

20.0

Covid Implications

20.1

Covid-19 implications are discussed throughout the body of the report.

20.2

The Covid-19 pandemic has had a significant international, national and regional impact,
and will continue to have, significant financial implications for the Council.

21.0

Schedule of Background Papers

21.1

2020-2021 Final Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020-2021 to 2023-2024,
report to Cabinet, 19 February 2020.

21.2

Budget 2020-2021 and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020-2021 to 2023-2024, report
to Full Council, 4 March 2020.

21.3

Reserves, Provisions and Balances 2019-2020, report to Cabinet, 8 July 2020.

21.4

Revenue Budget Outturn 2019-2020, report to Cabinet, 8 July 2020.

21.5

Draft Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2021-2022 to 2023-2024, report to
Cabinet, 29 July 2020.

21.6

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2020-2021, report to Cabinet (Resources) Panel, 29 July
2020.

21.7

Draft Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2021-2022 to 2023-2024, report to
Cabinet, 11 November 2020.

Page 36

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

22.0

Appendices

22.1

Appendix 1 – Revenue Budget Monitoring

22.2

Appendix 2 – General Fund Budget Risks 2020-2021.

22.3

Appendix 3 – Housing Revenue Account Budget Monitoring

22.4

Appendix 4 – General Fund Budget Virements

22.5

Appendix 5 – Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) Write-offs

22.6

Appendix 6 – Council Tax Write-offs

Page 37

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

Page 39

Adult Services
Adults Assessment and
Care Management
Better Care Fund
Carer Support
Community Financial
Support
Community Support
Director of Adults services
and Additional Monies
Emergency Duty Team
Independent Living Service

Learning Disabilities Care
Purchasing

£000

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000

%

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1
£000

(201) An underspend is forecast due
to unfilled staffing vacancies.
4

5,266

5,100

(166)

(3.15%)

831

829

(2)

(0.24%)

1,550

1,498

(52)

(3.35%)

(35)

547

545

(2)

(0.37%)

-

(6,692)

(6,695)

(3)

0.04%

-

320
1,851

320
1,778

(73)

(3.94%)

(50)

21,984

23,618

1,634

7.43%

Reason for Variance Q2

An overspend is forecast due
to additional demand for care
packages. A task and finish
group has been set up to
477
analyse the increase in
demand and agree steps to
manage and mitigate costs
going forward.

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

£000

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000

%

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1
£000

Page 40

An underspend is forecast as
result of unfilled staff
(134) vacancies. Work is ongoing to
identify any potential future
savings.
An overspend is forecast due
416 to additional demand for care
packages

Learning Disability Provider

4,658

4,428

(230)

(4.94%)

Mental Health Assessment
& Care Management

5,329

5,633

304

5.70%

21,829

21,832

3

0.01%

(29)

3,533

3,505

(28)

(0.79%)

(75)

Older People Care
Purchasing
Older People Provider
Services

Physical Disabilities Care
Purchasing

Quality Assurance and
Policies

4,784

4,957

173

3.62%

367

267

(100)

(27.25%)

Reason for Variance Q2

Whilst an overspend continues
to be forecast due to
additional demand for care
405
packages, forecast demand
has reduced from levels
assumed at quarter one.
An underspend is forecast due
to unfilled staffing vacancies.
(103)
Work is ongoing to identify any
potential future savings.

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

Strategic Commissioning
Total Adult Services

1,532
67,689

£000
1,456
69,071

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000
(76)
1,382

%
(4.96%)
2.04%

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1
£000
(98)
577

Reason for Variance Q2

Page 41

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

£000

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000

%

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1

Reason for Variance Q2

£000

Children's Services

Page 42

Children & Young People In
Care

31,324

30,126

(1,198)

(3.82%)

Director of Children's
Services

1,149

907

(242)

(21.06%)

Head of Children's
Improvement

2,144

2,175

31

1.45%

There is a forecast
underspend against
placements budgets. This
continues to be a result
(414) of the robust oversight and
management of demand
across the social care system.
Work is ongoing to identify
potential permanent budget
reduction opportunities.
The underspend is due to a
one-off saving against the
(245) emotional health and
wellbeing contract, which is
currently being re-tendered
and due to start April 2021.
-

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

Headstart
Inclusion Support
Regional Adoption Agency
Consortium

£000

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000

%

£000

1,187

1,180

(7)

(0.59%)

(4)

-

-

-

-

-

Page 43
Safeguarding

Social Inclusion & Play
Service
Strategic Commissioning Childrens
Specialist Support

Reason for Variance Q2

The projected underspend is
due to a reduction in costs
(2)
associated with DoLS. New
legislation has been pushed
back to April 2022. It is
expected this will increase
demand.

2,878

2,648

(230)

(7.99%)

-

-

-

-

-

1,532

1,456

(76)

(4.96%)

(96)

2,896

2,747

(149)

(5.15%)

The majority of the
- underspend relates to one off
staffing vacancies these have

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

£000

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000

%

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1

Reason for Variance Q2

£000
been identified as in-year
efficiencies and ongoing
savings are being explored.

Page 44
Strengthening Families

10,264

9,513

(751)

(7.32%)

Youth Offending
Central Education
Director of Education
Early Years
School Improvement

1,135
(1,213)
82
295
964

1,054
(1,213)
82
292
875

(81)
(3)
(89)

(7.14%)
(1.02%)
(9.23%)

Projected underspend due to
one-off staffing vacancies,
partially offset by agency
costs. A review of the support
offer from Strengthening
Family Hubs has been
(243)
undertaken and as a result
vacancies are currently being
filled. Work is ongoing to
identify in year efficiencies and
ongoing savings particularly
related to Section 17.
-

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

School Organisation

Page 45

Schools
Special Educational Needs
Children's Services and
Education

£000

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000

%

£000

273

329

56

20.51%

170

(281)

(281)

-

-

-

54,629

51,890

(2,739)

(5.01%)

(834)

Reason for Variance Q2

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

£000

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000

%

£000
-

Page 46

Public Health and
Wellbeing
Business Continuity &
Emergency Planning

5

5

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

33

13

(20)

(61.82%)

(5)

Healthier Places Service

-

-

-

-

-

Healthy Ageing

-

-

-

-

-

Healthy Life Expectancy

-

-

-

-

29

761

761

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(29)

Commissioning
Community Safety &
Community Cohesion

Leisure Services
Public Health Business
Management

Reason for Variance Q2

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

£000

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000

%

£000
-

Page 47

Starting and Developing
Well

-

-

-

-

-

System Leadership

-

-

-

-

-

799

779

(20)

(2.55%)

(5)

Total Public Health and
Wellbeing

Reason for Variance Q2

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

City Environment
Bereavement Services
Black Country Transport

£000

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000

%

£000

Page 48

(2,091)
32

(2,051)
32

40
-

1.91%
-

1
-

City Events

386

432

46

11.92%

-

Coroners Service

223

223

-

-

-

Customer Services

Director City Environment
Energy and Sustainability
Environmental Services

Reason for Variance Q2

1,819

1,945

126

6.93%

206
119

206
187

68

57.14%

6,243

6,073

(170)

(2.72%)

An overspend is forecast due
to loss of income, taking on
7 additional workloads and a
delay in the delivery of a
budget reduction target.
7
- An underspend is as a result
of unfilled staff vacancies.

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

£000

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000

%

£000

Page 49

Fleet Services

1,855

1,537

(318)

(17.14%)

Highways Maintenance
Landscaping

1,572
31

1,572
31

-

-

294

294

-

-

(611)

(590)

21

3.44%

980

853

(127)

(12.96%)

(2,942)

(2,942)

-

-

Licensing

Markets
Operation & Maintenance
of Existing Network
Parking Services

Reason for Variance Q2

An underspend is forecast as
a result of underspends and
- efficiencies on staffing, tyres
and parts and increased
income.
This position assumes that
the forecast overspend of
£462,000 is met from the
Licencing Reserve.
270
An underspend is forecast as
(231) a result of vacancies held
pending a restructure.
-

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

Public Protection

Page 50

Register Office

£000

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000

%

Reason for Variance Q2

£000

1,929

1,784

(145)

(7.52%)

(55)

(54)

1

1.82%

Street Lighting

2,871

3,098

227

7.91%

Transportation

5,468

5,468

-

-

Waste and Recycling

5,952

6,258

306

5.14%

Waste Commercial
Services

4,576

5,017

441

9.64%

36 An underspend is forecast
due to unfilled staff vacancies.
An overspend is forecast as a
128 result of the delayed
efficiencies from the
implementation of LED's.
84
An overspend is forecast as a
result of operational costs and
associated costs of extending
- the opening hours of
household waste recycling
centres from 5 to 7 days a
week.
An overspend is forecast
922 primarily as a result of
additional disposal costs due

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

£000

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000

%

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1

Reason for Variance Q2

£000
to price increases on these
contracts.

Total City Environment

28,857

29,373

516

1.79%

1,224

Page 51

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

City Assets and Housing
Project and Works Team –
Capital Programmes

Page 52

Catering

Cleaning

Corporate Asset
Management
Corporate Landlord Support

£000

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000

%

£000

94

89

(5)

(5.32%)

45

(84)

(84)

-

-

-

1,433

1,051

(382)

Reason for Variance Q2

(26.66%)

7,974

7,406

(568)

(7.12%)

164

124

(40)

(24.39%)

The forecast underspend
(58) reflects posts currently held
vacant and the efficient use of
staffing resources as a result
of buildings remaining closed.
The forecast underspend
reflects the decrease in
(182) utilities expenditure as a result
of the reduced use of
operational buildings.
-

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

£000

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000

%

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1
£000

Page 53

An overspend is forecast as a
result of reduced income
193 recovery relating to ground
leases and vacant commercial
rental units.

Estates and Valuations

(4,182)

(3,929)

253

(6.05%)

Facilities Management

1,148

1,183

35

3.05%

245

97

49

(48)

(49.48%)

(48)

Head of Corporate Landlord

Reason for Variance Q2

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

£000

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000

%

£000

Page 54
Project and Works Team –
Maintenance Programme

1,983

1,983

-

Reason for Variance Q2

-

In the 2020-2021 Final Budget
and Medium Term Financial
Strategy 2020-2021 to 20232024 report to Cabinet on 19
February 2020, there was an
approved £3 million budget
built into the Corporate
Contingency for potential
growth relating to the
Maintenance Programme. Due
to the pandemic it has not
been possible to undertake all
the scheduled works, and
some works have been
deferred. Work is currently
ongoing to forecast the cost of
the level of works that will be
completed in 2020-2021 and
updates will be provided in a
future report to Councillors.

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

Page 55

Housing

Total City Assets and
Housing

£000

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000

%

931

1,601

670

71.97%

9,558

9,473

(85)

(0.89%)

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1

Reason for Variance Q2

£000

A forecast overspend is due to
increased demand for
135 homelessness provision
generally. This is mitigated by
reduced costs in Private
Sector Housing due to staff
vacancies and additional
forecast income from
Licencing and Civil Penalties.
330

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

Regeneration
Adult Education
City Development

£000

(300)
524

£000

(300)
524

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
%

-

£000

-

-

Page 56

An overspend is forecast as a
- result of income targets not
being met.
An overspend is forecast as a
- result of a Wolves at Work
funding pressure.

City Planning

779

893

114

14.63%

Director Regeneration

412

412

-

-

Enterprise

651

772

121

18.59%

-

-

-

-

-

1,572

1,476

(96)

(6.11%)

4

-

-

-

-

-

1,576

1,668

92

5.84%

(22)

Visitor Economy

1,071

756

(315)

(29.41%)

Total Regeneration

6,285

6,201

(84)

(1.34%)

Land and Property
Investment Support
Local Economy
Service Director City
Economy
Skills

Reason for Variance Q2

The underspend reflects one(201) off staff vacancies, held
pending a restructure.
(219)

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

£000

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000

%

Reason for Variance Q2

£000

Finance

Page 57

Audit Services

1,930

1,645

(285)

(14.77%)

Central Corporate Budgets

3,950

3,489

(461)

(11.67%)

155
159

155
159

-

-

48

761

785

547

Commercial Services
Finance Director
Housing Benefit Payments
& Subsidy
Procurement Services

713 1485.42%

(238)

(30.32%)

The underspend is forecast
- due to unfilled staff vacancies
held across the service.
An underspend is forecast
due to significant reductions
in enhanced pension costs
(331) and bank charges, combined
with other lesser
underspends against a range
of corporate budgets.
An overspend is forecast as a
- result of increased demand
for homelessness provision.
An underspend is forecast for
50 Procurement Services
totalling £238,000. As part of

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

£000

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000

%

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1

Reason for Variance Q2

£000

Page 58

the 2020-2021 budget setting
process, emerging pressures
within Procurement Services
were flagged and a budget
was earmarked in the
Corporate Contingency for
Budget Growth. Taking the
budget allocation into
account, it is forecast that the
service will not fully utilise this
budget in 2020-2021 due to
resource reallocation during
the Covid-19 pandemic.
Revenues & Benefits
Strategic Finance
The Hub
Total Finance

2,617
2,748
1,648
14,040

2,568
2,748
1,582
13,654

(49)
(66)
(386)

(1.87%)
0.00%
(4.00%)
(2.75%)

(56)
(17)
(354)

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

Governance
Director of Governance
Governance Services

134
2,634

£000

134
2,582

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000

%

(52)

Reason for Variance Q2

£000

(1.97%)

(69)

Page 59

The forecast underspend is
due to anticipated additional
(122)
external income
generation.

Legal Services

2,040

1,925

(115)

(5.64%)

Human Resources

1,720

1,720

-

-

-

Business Change
Ward Funds
Total Governance

2,954
200
9,682

2,897
200
9,458

(57)
(224)

(1.93%)
(2.31%)

(5)
(196)

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

Chief Executive
Chief Executive
Total Chief Executive

£000

184
184

£000

184
184

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
%

-

£000

-

-

Reason for Variance Q2

Page 60

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

£000

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000

%

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1
£000

Communications

Page 61

Communications

961

908

(53)

(5.52%)

(34)

Total Communications

961

908

(53)

(5.52%)

(34)

Reason for Variance Q2

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

£000

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000

%

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1

Reason for Variance Q2

£000

Strategy

Page 62

ICTS

Insight and Performance
Policy and Strategy
Service Development
Organisational
Development
Strategy
Total Strategy

An underspend is projected as
a result of unfilled staff
vacancies in year and
continuing works to identify
(225)
and deliver efficiencies in
advance of the targets
reflected in the approved
Medium Term Financial
Strategy for ICT.

6,190

5,952

(238)

(3.84%)

760
150
222

772
71
214

12
(79)
(8)

1.58%
(52.67%)
(3.60%)

1,167

1,147

(20)

(1.71%)

(36)

140
8,629

140
8,296

(333)

(3.86%)

(261)

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

Page 63

Deputy Chief Executive
Deputy Chief Executive
Digital Transformation
Programme
Service Improvement
Total Deputy Chief
Executive

£000

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000

%

£000

197

197

-

-

-

88

88

-

-

-

165

163

(2)

(1.21%)

-

450

448

(2)

(0.44%)

-

Reason for Variance Q2

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

£000

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000

%

Reason for Variance Q2

£000

Corporate Budgets
(5,514)

(3,872)

1,642

29.78%

Treasury Management

36,835

35,050

(1,785)

(4.85%)

3,192

3,338

146

4.57%

-

3,164

3,164

-

Page 64

Corporate Budgets

Corporate Adjustments
Underspend transferred to
Reserve to support the
2021-2022 Budget Strategy

An underspend is forecast
against Corporate Budgets as
1,261
a result of anticipated budget
efficiencies.
An underspend in the region
of £1.8 million is forecast
against the Treasury
Management budget due to a
reduced borrowing need in
year arising as result of re(1,486) phasing of the capital
programme and lower interest
rates forecast on borrowing
due to the impact on the
economy of Covid-19. This is
offset by a reduction in
treasury income receivable.
As a result of the forecast
- corporate budget efficiencies
and one-off forecast

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 1
General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring – Service Analysis

Service

Net
Net
Controllable
Controllable
Revised
Forecast
Budget
2020-2021
2020-2021
£000

£000

Net
Controllable
Variance
2020-2021
Q1

Net Controllable
Variance
2020-2021 Q2
£000

%

Reason for Variance Q2

£000

Page 65

underspends across other
Directorates, it is proposed
based on current forecasts
that £3.2 million be
transferred into a specific
reserve to support the 20212022 budget strategy
Apprenticeship Levy
West Midlands Transport
Levy
Environment Agency Levy
Birmingham Airport - Rent

495

495

-

-

-

10,309

10,306

(3)

(0.03%)

(3)

76
(69)

76
(69)

-

-

-

Central Provision for Autoenrolment and Pay Award
Costs

1,136

-

Total Corporate Budgets

46,460

48,488

(1,136) (100.00%)

2,028

4.37%

It is anticipated that there will
be an underspend against the
Central Provision for Autoenrolment and Pay Award
costs totalling £1.1 million in
2020-2021.
(228)

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 2
General Fund Budget Risks 2020-2021

Risk
Medium Term Forecasting

Service Demands

Identification of Budget
Reductions
Budget Management

Transformation Programme

Reduction in Income and
Funding

Third Parties

Description
Risks that might materialise as a result of
the impact of non-pay inflation and pay
awards, uptake of pension auto enrolment,
and National Living Wage.
Risks that might materialise as a result of
demands for statutory services
outstretching the available resources. This
particularly applies to adults and childrens
social care.
Risks that might materialise as a result of
demands for non-statutory services
outstretching the available resources.
Risks that might materialise as a result of
not identifying budget reductions due to
limited opportunity to deliver efficiencies.
Risks that might materialise as a result of
the robustness of financial planning and
management, in addition to the
consideration made with regards to the loss
of key personnel or loss of ICTS facilities
Risks that might materialise as a result of
not delivering the reductions incorporated
into the budget and not having sufficient
sums available to fund the upfront and oneoff costs associated with delivering budget
reductions and downsizing the workforce.
Risks that might materialise as a result of
income being below budgeted levels, claw
back of grant, or increased levels of bad
debts.
The risk of successful appeals against
business rates.
Risks that might materialise as a result of
third parties and suppliers ceasing trading
or withdrawing from the market.

Page 67

Level of
Risk
Amber

Red

Amber

Amber

Green

Amber

Amber

Amber

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 2
General Fund Budget Risks 2020-2021
Risk
Government Policy

Covid 19

Description
Risks that might materialise due to
structural uncertainties including the impact
of exiting the European Union.
Risks that might materialise as a result of
changes to Government policy including
changes in VAT and taxation rules.
Risk that the financial implications of Covid
19 including the Council’s recovery will
exceed the grant allocations awarded by
Government and place further financial
pressures on the council financial position.

Page 68

Level of
Risk
Red

Red

Red

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 3
Housing Revenue Account Revenue Outturn 2020-2021

Budget

2020-2021
Forecast
Outturn

2020-2021
Forecast
Variance

£000

£000

£000

2020-2021

Income
Gross rents – dwellings

(89,740)

(88,793)

947

(537)

(537)

-

(6,241)

(6,110)

131

(96,518)

(95,440)

1,078

Repairs and maintenance

26,230

26,229

-1

Supervision and management

20,168

20,172

4

350

646

296

2,000

2,000

-

Depreciation of fixed assets

18,308

18,528

220

Total expenditure

67,056

67,575

519

(29,462)

(27,865)

1,597

10,996

10,250

(746)

Interest and investment income

(79)

(15)

64

Contribution to capital financing

7,707

7,707

-

(10,838)

(9,923)

915

10,838

9,923

(915)

-

-

-

Gross rents – non dwellings
Charges to tenants for services and
facilities
Total income
Expenditure

Rents, rates and taxes
Increase in provision for bad debts

Net cost of HRA services
Interest payable

(Surplus)/deficit before transfers
to/from reserves and provision for
redemption of debt
Allocation of (surplus)/deficit
Provision for redemption of debt
Balance for the year

Page 69

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 4
General Fund Budget Virements
From
Division

To
Service

Division

Service

£000

Corporate
Accounts

Corporate
Accounts

Strategy

ICT

Governance

Governance
Services

Governance

Governance
Services

52

Governance

Legal Services

Governance

Legal Services

72

Finance

Strategic
Finance

Finance

Strategic
Finance

18

Finance

Audit Services

Finance

Audit Services

78

Older People

Older People
Provider
Services

City
Environment

Passenger
Transport

648

Older People

Older People
Provider
Services
(Blakenhall
Resource
Centre)

City
Environment

Passenger
Transport

67

Corporate

Corporate
Accounts

City Assets &
Housing

P&W - Capital
Programme
Team

18

City Assets &
Housing

Corporate Asset
Management

Corporate

Corporate
Accounts

21

Corporate

Corporate
Accounts

City Assets &
Housing

Facilities
Management

54

Corporate

Corporate
Accounts

City
Environment

Customer
Services

80

Corporate

Corporate
Accounts

City
Environment

Parking

15

Page 71

300

Reason for Virement
Budget reallocation
from the Corporate
Contingency for Budget
Growth
Realignment of budgets
within service between
employee and nonemployee budget lines.
Realignment of budgets
within service between
employee and nonemployee budget lines.
Realignment of budgets
within service between
employee and nonemployee budget lines.
Realignment of budgets
within service between
employee and nonemployee budget lines.
Rationalisation of
transport expenditure
budgets within the
Transportation Service
(Travel Unit) to reflect
revised structure
Rationalisation of
transport expenditure
budgets within the
Transportation Service
(Travel Unit) to reflect
revised structure
Amend recharges
between HRA and
General Fund
Amend recharges
between HRA and
General Fund
Amend recharges
between HRA and
General Fund
Amend recharges
between HRA and
General Fund
Amend recharges
between HRA and
General Fund

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 4
General Fund Budget Virements
From
Division

To
Service

Division

Service

Corporate
Accounts

Corporate
Accounts

Various

Various

Public Health
& Wellbeing

Public Health
Business
Management

Public Health
& Wellbeing

Public Health
Business
Management

Regeneration

City
Development

Regeneration

City
Development

City Assets &
Housing

Corporate Asset
Management

City Assets &
Housing

Corporate Asset
Management

Regeneration

Visitor Economy

Regeneration

Visitor Economy

Children's
Services

Children &
Children's
Young People In
Services
Care

£000

Reason for Virement

Allocation of Pay Award
999 budget held corporately
to services
Realignment of budget
765 following grant
adjustments
Virements to reflect
657 allocation of the
Regeneration Reserve
Virements to reflect
50 allocation of the
Regeneration Reserve
Virements to reflect
25 allocation of the
Regeneration Reserve

Children &
Young People
In Care

74

Realignment of budgets
within service.

Strategy

Service
Development

Strategy

Service
Development

Realignment of budgets
within service between
10
employee and nonemployee budget lines.

Strategic
Director
People

Strategic
Commissioning

Adult Services

Independent
Living Service

58

Realignment of budget
between services

220

Realignment of budget
within service

110

Realignment of budget
within service

Public Health
& Wellbeing

Public Health
& Wellbeing
Children's
Services
Education
and Skills
Children's
Services
Children's
Services

Community
Safety &
Community
Cohesion
Community
Safety &
Community
Cohesion
Specialist
Support
Early Years
Head of
Children's
Improvement
Director of
Children's
Services

Public Health
& Wellbeing

Public Health
& Wellbeing
Children's
Services
Education and
Skills
Strategic
Director
People
Children's
Services

Community
Safety &
Community
Cohesion
Community
Safety &
Community
Cohesion
Specialist
Support
Early Years
Strategic
Commissioning
Specialist
Support

Education
and Skills

Central
Education

Education and
Skills

Children's
Services

Head of
Children's
Improvement

Children's
Services

Special
Educational
Needs
Children &
Young People
In Care

Page 72

Realignment of budgets
within service
Realignment of budgets
268
within service
225

636 Realignment of budgets

80 Budget realignment

3,690 Realignment of budgets

120 Realignment of budgets

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 4
General Fund Budget Virements
From
Division
Children's
Services

Service
Head of
Children's
Improvement

To
Division
Children's
Services

Service
Strengthening
Families

Page 73

£000

Reason for Virement

259 Realignment of budgets

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 5
Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) Write Offs to be approved by
Cabinet (Resources) Panel
Account Ref
5049287
5059529
5059673
5100131
5101816
5106107
5111595
5113662

Write-off Reason
Recovery Prohibited By Statute
Recovery Prohibited By Statute
Recovery Prohibited By Statute
Recovery Prohibited By Statute
Recovery Prohibited By Statute
Recovery Prohibited By Statute
Recovery Prohibited By Statute
Recovery Prohibited By Statute
Total

Page 75

Write-Off Amount £
17,094.55
6,488.57
22,453.31
8,999.25
9,781.65
6,486.02
7,824.68
6,770.44
85,898.47

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

APPENDIX 6
Council Tax Write Off to be approved by Cabinet (Resources) Panel
Account Reference Number

Write-off Reason

61234708876
61234708881
61234650283

Deceased (no estate)
Deceased (no estate)
Unable to Trace
Total

Page 77

Write off Amount £

7,863.35
6,242.36
7,007.25
21,112.96

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 6

Cabinet (Resources) Panel
9 December 2020
Report title

Kickstart Work Experience Programme

Decision designation

AMBER

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

Councillor Steve Simkins
Cabinet Member for City Economy

Key decision

Yes

In forward plan

No

Wards affected

All Wards

Accountable Director

Richard Lawrence, Director of Regeneration

Originating service

Regeneration

Accountable employee

Sue Lindup
Tel
Email

Skills and Employability Manager
01902 550624/ 07766473146
Sue.lindup@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Report to be/has been
considered by

Regeneration
Leadership Team
Strategic Executive
Board

1 December 2020
1 December 2020

Recommendations for decision:
The Cabinet (Resources) Panel is recommended to:
1. Delegate authority to the Cabinet Member for City Economy, in consultation with Director
of Regeneration to:
a)

Approve the Council entering into the required grant agreement with the
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) for the Council to employ young
people aged 16-24 years old at risk of long term unemployment on the Kickstart
scheme.

b)

Approve the Council entering into required grant agreements with DWP for the
Council to act as a Gateway for businesses in the city to deliver Kickstart work
experience placements to young people aged 16-24 years old.

Page 79

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

c)

Approve payments of grants to employers who are approved as Kickstart work
experience providers by DWP, funded from DWP grant.

d)

Approve reimbursement of Kickstart salaries to employers who participate in the
scheme through a claims process agreed with DWP, funded from DWP grant.

e)

Approve the Council entering into back to back grant funding agreements with
employers participating in the scheme.

f)

Approve the creation of the necessary supplementary budgets to deliver the
scheme.

Recommendations for noting:
The Cabinet (Resources) Panel is asked to note:
1. That the delivery of support to employers and Kickstart participants will be provided
through the Council’s Enterprise and Skills teams, through Wolves at Work and
Education Business Partnership as part of a traded service to employers.
2. The Council will be responsible for putting in place the appropriate financial
management processes to reimburse Kickstart salaries for participants employed by
employers approved for the Council Gateway.
3. The Council will be responsible for managing finance, audit and compliance
requirements of the scheme in its role as a Gateway.
4. That approval will be sought in the Revenue Budget Monitoring 2020-2021 Report
presented to Cabinet Resources Panel also at this meeting for the use of £98,000
over an 18 month period from the Recovery Reserve to fund a project team for the
Kickstart Work Experience Programme.

Page 80

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

1.0

Purpose

1.1

To seek approvals to receive grants from DWP to deliver the Kickstart Work Experience
programme to support unemployed young people aged 16-24 years.

1.2

To seek approvals to pay out grants to employers approved to deliver Kickstart Work
Experience placements as part of the Council Gateway.

2.0

Background

2.1

During the past few months, the Coronavirus pandemic has had a disproportionate
impact on the lives of young people, which has directly resulted in an increase in youth
unemployment. Wolverhampton currently has the third highest percentage of
unemployment in England at 15.9% with a total of 3380 young people claiming benefits
(NOMIS September 2020). This represents an increase of more than double since
January 2020 with an increase of 1565 young people claiming benefits.

2.2

The Kickstart scheme is part of a package of measures announced by Government as
part of the Jobs Support Plan to provide enhanced support to young people and
employers as a result of the Pandemic. The programme is managed by DWP.

2.3

Kickstart provides funding to employers to create new six-month work placements for 1624 year olds on Universal Credit, who are at risk of long term unemployment.

2.4

Upon approval of a Kickstart placement, the employer receives a financial grant of £1500
per placement.

2.5

Employers can also apply for funding to cover the following:


100% of the National Minimum Wage (or the National Living Wage depending on
the age of the participant) for 25 hours per week for a total of six months.



Associated employer National Insurance contributions.



Employer minimum automatic enrolment contributions.

2.6

Employers are encouraged to sign up to the programme if they can provide 30+ work
placements before December 2021. Employers can spread the start date of job
placements up until the end of December with a completion date of all work placements
by June 2022.

2.7

If an employer wishes to become involved in the programme but cannot provide 30+
work placements, they can sign up for support from a Gateway provider such as Local
Authorities, Chamber of Commerce or other approved providers.

2.8

In addition, if operating as a Gateway, the Gateway provider will also receive £300 per
placement. It is intended that this funding will be utilised to offset a proportion of the
Council’s costs to administer the scheme on behalf of employers.

Page 81

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

2.9

The Gateway organisation would be responsible for the distribution of the £1500 financial
grant to employers to deliver their requirements for each work placement.

2.10

The Gateway organisation would also be responsible for receiving the salaries for all
Kickstart work placements registered on the Gateway. The Gateway would then be
responsible for reimbursing all salaries, National Insurance and Pension costs to the
employer through an auditable process approved by DWP.

3.0

Progress and proposals

3.1

It is proposed that the Council supports the programme in three ways:





Kickstart Employer – to offer an initial cohort of 30 work placements within the Council up
until December 2021.
Kickstart Gateway – to provide a co-ordinated Gateway offer to employers through the
Council’s Enterprise and Skills teams ensuring that employers and young people are
supported. It is proposed that the Gateway would initially support up to 150 work
placements.
Kickstart Client support – to offer funded support packages for young people who are
taking part in the programme.

Kickstart Employer
3.2

As a Kickstart employer, the Council will provide 30 new and supported work experience
placements for young people aged 16-24 years.

3.3

The Council will receive £1500 per work placement. This funding will be approved as
part of a grant agreement with DWP and will cover eligible expenses for the placement
including set up fees, uniform and employability support costs.

3.4

The Council will be required to register each work placement on their PAYE system and
pay their salaries as an employee. The Council will then claim the salary for each
participant one month in arrears. In cases where an individual discontinues their
Kickstart work placement, a pro-rata salary payment will be made, for the period of time
the individual has worked.

3.5

The Council will be required to ensure that employability support is provided as part of
the grant agreement with DWP. The College has been approached to develop an
employability training programme to support the young person to gain vital skills whilst
undertaking the programme.

3.6

The Council will also be required to provide coaching and mentoring to the young person
during their placement which will be delivered through the services of the Organisational
Development Team, service manager and in collaboration with the Wolves at Work team.

Page 82

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Kickstart Gateway
3.7

As a Kickstart Gateway, the Council will support employers who have expressed an
interest in providing work placements through the Wolves at Work employer support and
the Council’s Education Business Partnership team.

3.8

The funding available to the Council to perform the role of a Gateway is £300 per
placement. This will contribute towards the resources which the Council will bring in for
oversight and delivery of the scheme. If a total of 150 placements are secured with
employers and 30 placements are secured in the Council, the total awarded by DWP will
be £54,000. This funding will be utilised to offset the costs of delivering the Gateway.

3.9

The Wolves at Work team would work with the employer to identify their workforce
development needs and to identify if a Kickstart work placement is appropriate for their
organisation. They will also conduct an eligibility check with the employer based on the
requirements laid down by DWP and assist in making applications to DWP for work
placements.

3.10

To date, Wolves at Work has received expressions of interest from 45 companies. 122
placements have been identified within those companies.

3.11

The Education Business Partnership team would support this process by undertaking
health and safety checks of the employer and ensuring that they are operating in a
Covid-19 secure environment suitable for the work placement to take place.

3.12

A grant funding agreement will be drawn up with each employer outlining their
requirements and responsibilities to deliver the Kickstart work experience placement
within their organisation. This will ensure any risk of grant clawback on these gateway
grants, is passed to the employers taking part in the programme.

3.13

As part of the grant funding agreement, employers will be provided with the option to
purchase services from the Council to deliver key requirements, e.g. coaching and
mentoring and careers advice for the young person.

3.14

The Council will be responsible for managing the financial transactions with the employer
and for ensuring compliance and audit of the scheme with each employer.

3.15

The employer will register each work placement on their PAYE and pay the salaries for
Kickstart placements. The employer will then claim back the salary one month in arrears
through a claims process established within the Council through a grant agreement with
DWP.
Kickstart Young People Support

3.16

Wolves at Work will offer an enhanced coaching and mentoring service to all participants
on the Kickstart programme, both those who are employed by the Council and those
employed as part of the Gateway process. This will be provided as part of the grant
agreement with the employer and will be funded from the grant provided to the employer.

Page 83

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

3.17

All individuals identified by DWP youth employment coaches as suitable for the Kickstart
programme vacancies will be referred to the Wolves at Work team and registered for
their services.

3.18

Work is underway with DWP to ensure that Wolverhampton’s most vulnerable young
people can benefit from the scheme, including care leavers and those who have
additional challenges.

3.19

Kickstart clients will be prepared for employer interviews by Wolves at Work. This
includes those within the Council and those recruited by employers through the Gateway
process.

3.20

Where an individual is employed by the Council, the individual will receive regular
coaching and mentoring support from the Wolves at Work team with a view to preparing
them throughout their work placements for progression into a positive outcome of
employment, training or an apprenticeship.

3.21

Where an individual is employed by a Gateway employer, this package of support will be
provided as part of a costed agreement with the employer.

3.22

All individuals will have access to training and support throughout their work placement.

4.0

Evaluation of alternative options

4.1

Option One - make no change to our existing arrangements. This would mean that
young people in the city would not benefit from this offer through the Council. Also, the
Council would not be in a position to support employers with offering work placements as
part of this scheme.

4.2

Option Two – deliver the Kickstart scheme for young people through the Council as an
employer only. The Council is proposing to identify an initial cohort of 30 placements as
an employer. This number will be reviewed regularly.

4.3

Option Three – deliver the Kickstart scheme for young people through the Gateway
supporting other employers in the city. The Council has already identified 45 employers
who are interested in joining the scheme and 122 work placements. This would mean
that only those employed by other employers could be supported through the Council.

4.4

Option Four – deliver the Kickstart scheme both as an employer and as a Gateway
employing initially up to 30 Kickstart placements through the Council and up to 150
placements through external employers. This is the preferred option as it allows the
Council to deliver the scheme as a reputable employer in the city and to provide support
to smaller employers who would like to engage with the scheme.

5.0

Reasons for decision

5.1

Kickstart will perform a vital role within the Relighting our City strategy priority Generate
More Jobs and Learning Opportunities to support young people in their pathway into
sustainable employment.

Page 84

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

5.2

Kickstart will form part of a youth offer within the city supporting young people,
particularly vulnerable young people, to access training, support, careers guidance and
sustainable employment including apprenticeships.

5.3

Kickstart will form part of a package of measures available to support care leavers in their
pathway into sustainable employment.

5.4

If the Council does not take the decision to become a Kickstart employer, then the
Council will not be in a position to take part in the scheme and provide a range of funded
Kickstart work placements to young people in our city.

5.5

If the Council does not take the decision to be a Gateway, it will be more difficult for
employers, particularly smaller employers in the city to play their part in delivering the
Kickstart programme. These employers rely on Gateways to provide access and support
to deliver the Kickstart placements within their businesses.

6.0

Financial implications

6.1

The Council will be required to enter into a grant agreement with DWP to deliver the
Kickstart programme both as an employer and as a Gateway.

6.2

It is understood that the vacancies identified by the Council can form part of the Gateway
agreement and the Council will also be in a position to claim an additional £300 per
Council vacancy as part of the Gateway in the same way that the Council can claim this
amount for external employers.
Financial Implications - Employer

6.3

The Council proposes to provide 30 Kickstart Work Placements during the funding period
for the scheme.

6.4

The 30 placements the Council will provide will receive funding to cover the cost of the
salary paid, as per the table below, plus employer’s NI and pension costs. The Council
will also receive a grant of £1500 per work placement, this will cover set up costs
including IT equipment and software licences, administration and management time and
support with helping participants develop work skills and experience (employability
support), as well as funding uniform and personal protective equipment required. The
total grant receivable from DWP to fund 30 work placements is £45,000.

6.5

The rate at which the Council will be able to claim back from DWP each young person’s
salary cost is detailed below:

Page 85

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Grade
KSWE
(Kick Start Work
Experience)

Pay Point
APPR02
APPR03
APPR04
APPR05

6.6

Description
Minimum Wage
under 18
Minimum Wage
18 -20
Minimum Wage
21-24
Minimum Living
Wage
25+

£6.45
£8.20
£8.72

The table below outlines the payment schedule and the payment dates and milestones
for claiming back participant set up and support costs and relevant salaries for Kickstart
placements in arrears.
Instalments Grant Sum Payable
1st Payment One payment per participant for
set up and support costs. The
amount will be stated in the
funding letter.
2nd Payment 100% of the relevant wage for 25
hours a week by the participant
during the first month of the job,
plus associated employer NI
contributions and employer
minimum automatic enrolment
contributions.
rd
th
3 to 7
100% of the relevant wage for 25
Payments
hours a week of work by the
participant during the subsequent
second, third, fourth, fifth and
sixth months of the job, plus
associated employer NI
contributions and employer
minimum automatic enrolment
contributions.

6.7

April 2020 Hourly
Rate
£4.55

Payment Date/Milestone
On confirmation to DWP’s
satisfaction that the participant
has started employment with the
employer and receipt of funds
from DWP
Paid in arrears – on confirmation
that participant paid through
PAYE for the first month and
receipt of funding from DWP.
The payment from DWP is
expected to be in or around the
6th week of the placement.
Paid in arrears – approximately
every month after the 2nd
payment on confirmation that
participant paid through PAYE
for the previous month and
receipt of funding from DWP.

Should a participant on the Kickstart scheme not complete the full six-month placement a
pro-rata payment will be paid for the salaries. It is understood that if individuals do not
complete the scheme the costs incurred to date will not become ineligible and therefore
will be funded and not clawed back.

Page 86

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

6.8

DWP have however stated that they will exercise their right to claw back funding for any
ineligible expenditure on the project. There is an extensive list of ineligible expenditure,
including payments which can be reimbursed by another public or private sector grant,
lobbying, statutory fines etc. The Council will ensure through its project management
and auditing processes that all expenditure is monitored carefully and is eligible.
Financial Implications - Gateway

6.9

The Council proposes to support initially 150 Kickstart work placements with employers
in the city. This will be reviewed regularly.

6.10

The grant payments which will be made to the Council by DWP to deliver the Kickstart
scheme as a Gateway for other employers are as follows:
Based on 150 Work Placements
Payment to Council for managing the
Gateway on behalf of DWP
Grant Payment per participant to be
paid as part of a Grant Funding
Agreement to the Employer

Fee/Grant
£300 per participant

Total
£45,000

£1500 per participant

£225,000

TOTAL

£270,000

6.11

In addition, the Council will be responsible for managing all financial processes on behalf
of each employer on the Gateway. This means that the Council will be responsible for
informing DWP when each placement has started their employment. At this point, DWP
will make its first grant payment to the Council in relation to each placement. The
Council will then make the relevant grant payments on the basis of an agreed grant
agreement with each employer.

6.12

Once the Kickstart placement has been registered on the employers’ PAYE system,
automatic payments for each placement will be made to the Council for each placement.
The Council will then reimburse the employer for their salary, NI and pension costs. The
Council will be required to maintain a fully auditable project management system to
ensure that all payments are checked and verified.

6.13

In terms of operating the Gateway and the claims processes, we have identified that
there will be a shortfall in the resources provided by DWP to operate the project. It is
proposed that the cost of the project team totalling approximately £98,000 over an 18
month period be funded from the Recovery Reserve. Cabinet (Resources) Panel
approval for this is sought in the Revenue Budget Monitoring 2020-2021 report also
presented to Cabinet (Resources) Panel at this meeting.

6.14

A Project team will be required to be put in place to manage the Kickstart Work
Experience project to ensure that the project is managed effectively and that all financial
transactions are checked and verified.
[VS/01122020/Q]

Page 87

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

7.0

Legal implications

7.1

Where the City of Wolverhampton Council acts as lead body for externally funded
projects, the Council will be required to enter into a funding agreement with the funder
which outlines the project and also sets out rules and regulations that must be complied
with. Where employers are involved in the delivery of the scheme, the Council will enter
into a back to back grant funding agreement with delivery partners setting out their
responsibilities and ensuring compliance with the funder’s rules and regulations.
[TS/25112020/W]

8.0

Equalities implications

8.1

This scheme will help to support the equalities implications on young people who have
been disproportionately affected by the Covid-19 pandemic which has resulted in an
accelerated increase in youth unemployment over the last few months. The scheme will
provide the mechanism for moving more young people into sustainable employment.

9.0

Climate change and environmental implications

9.1

The scheme will be delivered within local businesses in Wolverhampton where young
people can readily access work experience without impacting significantly on the
environment. Public transport will be recommended as a means of travelling to the
employers’ premises.

10.0

Human resources implications

10.1

The scheme will require the recruitment of 30 Kickstart work placements in the Council.
A recruitment, induction and support process will be put in place specifically to suit the
needs of young people on the Kickstart scheme. This will be implemented in partnership
with the Organisational Development Team and the Enterprise and Skills Team.

10.2

Kickstart work experience pay grades will be set up.

11.0

Corporate landlord implications

11.1

All Kickstart work placements will be checked for health and safety risk assessments and
venues will form part of this risk assessment to ensure compliance for young people
undertaking work experience. Public and employers liability insurance is adequate for
the Council provision. Employers will be asked to confirm that they have the appropriate
insurance in place before they employ a work placement.

12.0

Health and Wellbeing Implications

12.1

Recruitment into sustainable employment is one of the key indicators for a healthier
lifestyle. This programme will support healthy lifestyles and will ensure that young people
have access to relevant health and well being support within the Council and coaching
and mentoring support as part of the programme.

Page 88

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

13.0

Covid Implications

13.1

All Kickstart work placements will undertake an individual Covid-19 risk assessment as
part of their induction in the Council. All placement venues will be risk assessed to
ensure that they have considered Covid-19 measures as part of their delivery.

14.0

Schedule of background papers

14.1

None.

Page 89

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 7

Cabinet (Resources) Panel
9 December 2020
Report title

Schedule of Individual Executive Decision
Notices

Decision designation

AMBER

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

All

Key decision

No

In forward plan

No

Wards affected

All

Accountable director

Mark Taylor, Deputy Chief Executive

Originating service

Democratic Services

Accountable employee

Kirsty Tuffin
Tel
Email

Report to be/has been
considered by

N/A

Democratic Services Officer
01902 552873
Kirsty.tuffin@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Recommendation for noting:
The Cabinet (Resources) Panel is asked to note:
1. The summary of open and exempt individual executive decisions approved by the
appropriate Cabinet Members following consultation with the relevant employees.

Page 91

This report is PUBLIC

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Schedule of Individual Executive Decision Notices
Part 1 – Open Items
Our Council
Decision maker
In consultation with
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Councillor Louise
Director of Strategy
13 November 2020
Heather Clark
Miles
01902 555614
Title and summary of decision
WV Online: Device and Connectivity Lending Scheme
Approved the pilot device and connectivity lending scheme, as part of a broader
whole city approach to delivering our commitment to be a digitally inclusive City.

Decision maker
In consultation with
Date Approved
Councillor Louise
Director of Strategy
20 November 2020
Miles
Title and summary of decision
Full Fibre Rollout on Housing Estates - wayleave approval
Approved entering into a non-exclusive block wayleaves.

Contact Officer
Heather Clark
01902 555614

Part 2 – Exempt Items
Our Council
Decision maker
In consultation with
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Councillor Louise
Deputy Chief Executive 26 March 2020
Jose Victoria
Miles
01902 550132
Title and summary of decision
Provision of Frozen, Chilled and Ambient Foods
Approved the award of the contract for the Provision of Frozen, Chilled and Ambient Foods to
Blakemore Foodservice of Steelmans Road, Jamesbridge, Darlaston, West Midlands, WS10
9UZ, United Kingdom for a duration of a four-year term from 1 May 2020 to 30 April 2024 for a
total contract value of up to £2.4 million.

Decision maker
In consultation with
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Councillor Louise
Director of Finance
7 October 2020
Dawn Dilks
Miles
01902 554607
Title and summary of decision
Residential Waste Bins Capital Request
Approved a virement from Capital contingency to Waste services creating a capital budget of
£67,000 for waste bins to continue to deliver the services to new and existing customers.

Page 92

This report is PUBLIC

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Housing

Decision maker
In consultation with
Date Approved
Councillor Jacqueline Deputy Chief Executive 6 November 2020
Sweetman
Title and summary of decision
Land and Property Transactions - IEDN 047
Approved the completion of the transactions listed below:
• Land at Bee Lane PF – Minor disposal
•
•
•
•

Contact Officer
Julia Nock
01902 550316

Goldthorn Hill Allotments – Grant of initial two-year licence followed by a 25-year lease
Pelham Street sub-station – Sale of freehold
Plots of land at Dale Street/Murdoch Road, Bilston – Sale of freehold
The Shed, Cannock Road/Woden Road, Heath Town – Variation of restrictive covenant

Decision maker
In consultation with
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Councillor Jacqueline Director of City
18 November 2020
Steve North
Sweetman
Environment
07791446112
Title and summary of decision
Better Homes for All Small sites Newbuild Council Housing
Approved the award of the contract for the Traditional House Building on former small garage
sites in Wolverhampton to J. Harper & Sons (Leominster) Ltd of Unit 1 & 2 Bevan Industrial
Estate, Brierley Hill, West Midlands, DY5 3TF, United Kingdom for a duration of 14 months
term from 1 December 2020 to 31 January 2022 for a total contract value of £5,516,876.00.

Decision maker
In consultation with
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Councillor Jacqueline Director of City
12 November 2020
Karen James
Sweetman
Environment
01902 55 1414
Title and summary of decision
Shared Ownership
1. Approved the sale of the initial sales equity of the 3 shared ownership properties at the site
known as Sweet Briary, Ettingshall, as detailed in the body of the report.
2. Approved the sale of the initial sales equity of the 3 shared ownership properties at the site
known as Peascroft, Bilston

Decision maker
In consultation with
Date Approved
Contact Officer
Councillor Jacqueline Director of City
18 November 2020
Karen Beasley
Sweetman
Environment
01902 55 4893
Title and summary of decision
New Park Village Re-development programme - Private property purchase (1)
1. Approved the completion of the purchase of the former council property listed in Appendix
1 at the agreed price of £75,000 plus Home Loss compensation.
2. Authorised the Chief Legal Officer or other authorised officers to execute legal
documentation to put the purchases into effect

Page 93

This report is PUBLIC

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Joint Cabinet Member Approvals

Decision maker

In consultation
Date Approved
Contact Officer
with
Councillor Stephen
Director of
12 November 2020
Harold Mututa
Simkins
Regeneration
07392121920
Councillor Louise Miles
Director of Finance
Title and summary of decision
Black Country AIM for GOLD Payment of grants to Small and Medium Size Enterprises
(SMEs)
Approved payments totaling £24,500 as detailed at section 5.3 of the report.

Decision maker

In consultation
Date Approved
Contact Officer
with
Councillor Stephen
Director of
29 October 2020
Harold Mututa
Simkins
Regeneration
07392121920
Councillor Louise Miles
Director of Finance
Title and summary of decision
Black Country AIM for GOLD Payment of grants to SMEs
Approve payments totaling £31,738 as detailed at section 5.3 of the report.

Decision maker

In consultation
with
Chief Executive
Director of Finance

Date Approved

Contact Officer

Councillor Jacqueline
20 November 2020
Michelle Howell
Sweetman
01902 553197
Councillor Louise Miles
Title and summary of decision
Loan to WV Living
1. Approved the terms of the loan to WV Living, including a return on investment chargeable
quarterly.
2. Approved the issue of the loan to WV Living in November 2020.

Page 94

Agenda Item No: 9

Document is Restricted

Page 95

This page is intentionally left blank

Document is Restricted

Page 111

This page is intentionally left blank

